
 
 
 
 

 
Montana State Capitol Building 

Room 152 
Helena, MT 

 
 
 
 

January 6-7th, 2014 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
 
 
 
 

  



AGENDA 
 
 

 
 
  











AGENDA 
 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 
 
 

January 7th, 2014 
State Capitol, Room 317 

 
1:30 PM 

 



 
MONTANA BOARD OF EDUCATION 

January 7, 2014 
1:30 - 3:30 pm 

Room 317, State Capitol 
 

AGENDA 
 
1:30 Call to Order - Governor Bullock 

• Roll Call 
• Approval of Minutes 

1:40 Opening Remarks - Governor Bullock 

1:50 Reports/Updates 

• Board of Public Education 
• Board of Regents 
• Early Childhood 
• High School Graduation Rates, College and Career 

Readiness 
• Higher Education  

o Complete College Montana 
 Dual Enrollment 
 Veterans Success Initiative 

• Workforce/Economic Development 
o TAACCCT Grant 
o Research  
o Main Street Montana 

• Tribal Colleges 

3:00 Public Testimony 

3:15 Recognition of Outgoing Board Members 

Closing Remarks/Comments 

3:30 Adjourn 

3:40 Board of Education photo on the Capitol Rotunda steps 



MINUTES OF  

BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 

July 16, 2013 

 Governor Steve Bullock called the meeting to order. Roll call was taken.  Board 
of Public Education members present:  Patty Myers, Chair, Sharon Carroll, John 
Edwards, Paul Anderson, Erin Williams.  Board of Regents members present:  Angela 
McLean, Chair, Jeffrey Krauss, Paul Tuss, Todd Buchanan, Major Robinson.  Ex officio 
members present:  Governor Steve Bullock, Superintendent Denise Juneau and 
Commissioner Clay Christian. 

 Governor Bullock welcomed everyone to the first meeting of the Board of 
Education during his term as Governor.  He recognized President Royce Engstrom, 
from the University of Montana and Lieutenant Governor John Walsh. 

 Governor Bullock said that this group had significant work to do in upcoming 
years.  His hope for Montana is: better jobs, a better educational system and more 
effective government.  Among the Governor’s priorities is our educational system as it is 
the foundation for what we do with job creation.  Montana needs to increase high school 
graduation rates.  Significant work has been done by the Board of Public Education and 
the Superintendent of Public Instruction.   College and career readiness starts before 
kindergarten.  We need to make sure students are ready for the next step in education, 
then in transition to the world.  Governor Bullock said his goal is that by 2023  60% of 
adults would have a professional certification or degree.    Education needs to be more 
responsive to businesses and their needs.   

 Governor Bullock recognized Montana’s 2013 Teacher of the Year, Eileen 
Sheehy of Billings and extended his thanks to Sheehy family for their work in Montana. 

 Eileen Sheehy stated that it was a great pleasure to be Teacher of the Year.  Her 
message was to please consider the people who are taking places of an aging 
workforce who don’t have the same skill or expertise.  We need to capture the skill and 
expertise of older teachers to help younger inexperienced teachers. She commented 
that the measure of our progress will be made by our children.   

Board of Regents Report  

 Board of Regents Chair Angela McLean thanked Governor Bullock for helping to 
ensure that tuition could be frozen using a performance funding model. The Montana 
University System and the Board of Regents are diligently working toward affordability 



for all students and decreasing the time to obtain a degree.  There are structures in 
place to meet workforce development needs.  Montanans need to work collaboratively 
to grow research enterprise.  There are strong building blocks in place to meet the 
Governor’s 60% degree/certification goal, including dual enrollment, workforce 
development, half-price tuition for dual enrollment opportunities, common course 
numbering and a powerful incentive for dual enrollment.  They are working to expand K-
20 data linkage with collaboration between OCHE, OPI, business communities and 
schools across Montana.  Significant progress has been made with two year educations 
and transferability of credits.  

Board of Public Education Report 

 Patty Myers, Chair of the Board of Public Education reported that they had just 
finished a major revision of the Chapter 55 accreditation standards and recently 
approved the content and performance standards for communication arts, literacy and 
mathematics.  Science is next on the list. The Board brings people from across the 
state, facilitated by the OPI, to review both national standards and Montana standards, 
include Indian Ed for All and develop Montana’s own standards.  The Board provides 
standards and districts provide the curriculum.  The Board of Public Education will be 
looking at renewal of PEPPS standards – standards by which schools of education 
across state develop their programs.     

Superintendent of Schools’ Report  

 Superintendent Denise Juneau acknowledged Chair Myers for outlining what’s 
going on between the OPI and Board of Public Education and Chair Mclean for outlining 
joint work by the Board of Regents, OCHE and the OPI.   Graduation Matters Montana 
(GMM) is the Superintendent’s key effort to increase graduation rates and decrease 
drop out rates.  There are 33 communities with schools with GMM programs.  Each 
school’s program is different, with their focus on meeting the needs of their individual 
communities.  Compared to 2010, 582 fewer students dropped out this last year.   

 Those 33 GMM communities are outpacing the state in retention.   A few of the 
GMM communities are looking at transitions to higher education.  The Student 
Assistance Foundation’s monies have been used to help students fill out FAFSA forms 
and have focus groups talking about financial aid.  As a result those communities 
assisted  5% more students to apply for financial aid as compared to the state average 
which dropped 3%. 

 The OPI is working to promote dual enrollment and dual credit, trying to get more 
students earning college credit before they leave high school.  Montana needs to 



increase the number of educators who can teach dual enrollment classes.  This requires 
the educators to have a master’s degree in the subject they are teaching.   

 Superintendent Juneau would like to see the Board streamline and standardize 
entrance requirements for dual enrollment students and increase awareness of dual 
enrollment opportunities in Montana.  The Superintendent is working with Governor 
Bullock’s office on outreach programs to make sure everyone is aware of the 
opportunities. 

 The Superintendent reported they are working on data linkages to provide 
students with electronic transcripts which will link with colleges providing the ability to 
measure how well high schools are preparing students for college.   

 The other partnership they have is the Gear Up federal grant which funds the  
ACT for every junior in Montana.  This past year 10,000 students took the ACT at no 
cost to the students and their families.  Taking the ACT as a junior lets the student know 
where their weaknesses and strengths are and gives them an opportunity for 
remediation before entering college. 

Early Childhood Learning Update 

 Governor Bullock introduced Dr. Shannon O’Brien, Policy Advisor for Education, 
to provide an update on early learning.  Dr. O’Brien remarked that education is a long- 
term investment and challenging in Montana where over 25% of the population is under 
five years of age.  Early learning is a collective responsibility.   Head Start programs are 
doing good things and the State Librarian has programs that reach out to families.  The 
Governor’s office is looking at programs in other states and existing in Montana that 
show improvement for young students.  Dr. O’Brien introduced DPHHS staff members, 
Jamie Palagi and Sarah Corbally, to explain their programs to reach out to Montana’s 
youngest citizens.   

 Ms. Palagi stated that they run child protection services and see the most 
vulnerable at-risk students.  Children bring what happens at home to school.  Adverse 
child experiences (ACE) have long term impacts. Kids who live in a state of fight or flight 
develop differently.  Interventions are needed in early childhood so we can change 
outcomes.  Of children with more than four adverse child experiences, 50% are in 
special education and 85% have been suspended from school by 2nd grade.  Getting 
early childhood services to these children is critical.  For a return on investment, the 
greatest gains are shown from an investment in early childhood.    Montana needs 
collaboration on a community and state level to support kids in homes and build skills of 
caregivers.   



 They encouraged the Board of Public Education to look at early childhood 
education in connection with their revision of the PEPPS standards. 

Tribal college update 

 Governor Bullock welcomed presidents from four Montana tribal colleges to give 
an update on their college.   

 Dr. Florence Garcia, President of Fort Peck Community College stated they are 
part of a national organization of  27 tribal colleges.  Montana colleges represent 20% of 
the membership.  The American Indian College Fund seeks funding for students in tribal 
colleges.   The main thing that sets tribal colleges apart from other institutions is that 
they are designed to assist in education and preserve tribal culture.  Fort Peck has a 
two year program with 410 students.  They are looking at workforce development and 
have an agreement with the Fort Peck Tribe and the Make it Right Foundation to build 
green housing for people in their community.  Seventy percent of their students are 
female and it takes 4-5 years to complete a two year degree.  Their students need a lot 
of developmental and refreshment courses.   

 Dr. Carole Falcon-Chandler, President of Aaniiih Nakoda College reported that 
they have a children’s language immersion school on their campus where students are 
speaking the language, learning the culture as well as learning other things.  Their 
graduation rate  is 33% which is okay for a small institution.  They are struggling 
because students that come in from public schools are not prepared in reading, writing 
and math skills.  The local schools are not teaching any college ready courses.    

 Dr. Billie Jo Kipp, President of Blackfeet Community College stated that they are 
doing cutting edge programming.  They have a health careers professional opportunity 
grant to increase the number of Native Americans in health care programs.  They want 
to work with the state on certification of behavioral health aides.  They offer scholarships 
with the goal for students to come back to tribal communities to work.   They are 
partnering with Browning schools on curriculum development to increase outcomes for 
students.  She stated that tribal colleges were left out of common course numbering and 
encouraged OCHE to include them in the future.   They would like to work more with 
dual enrollment and are looking to OPI and higher education to accomplish that goal.  

 Dr. Richard Little Bear. President of Chief Dull Knife College voiced his 
agreement with comments made by the previous tribal college presidents.  They have a 
strong emphasis on remediation because the students are not prepared for college.   
They started a summer session, tuition free, to help prepare students for college.   They 
admit both Indian and non-Indian students.  



Main Street Montana Project 

 Governor Bullock introduced the CEO of the Washington Corporation, Larry 
Simkins to give an outline of the Main Street Montana Project.  Mr. Simkins stated that 
GMM and Early Childhood Development were very important to them and they will 
continue to be involved in those projects.  

 The mission of Main Street Montana is to develop a bottom-up, self-sustaining 
blue print for Montana jobs.  This project is a private sector led, non-partisan, 
transparent, accountable blue print for job creation and economic development.  They 
are looking for impediments to job creation and economic development and then 
developing the solutions.  So far, the common theme in every city has been education, 
the value of a two year education and the value of apprenticeship programs. The next 
step is county surveys to get feedback from each county about their needs and to find 
out what neighboring states are doing.  They will have a formal report prepared in the 
spring of 2014 with concrete actions suggested. 

Veterans and Military Families 

Lieutenant Governor John Walsh stated that he feels a strong responsibility to military 
veterans and their families.  Montana has 110,000 veterans living in the state.  Montana 
needs to provide resources for educational opportunities at all levels.  Montana will join 
other states in a compact for education for military children.  The initial focus is on the 
difficulties of transferring from school to school and helping with the transition from high 
school to warrior to higher education.     

Round Table Discussion 

 Governor Bullock invited Board members to discuss their concerns and priorities. 

 Regent Angela McLean said we need to apply an “all hands on deck” approach 
to early childhood education.  We need to intervene early and often to mitigate 
problems.  She proposed effective data monitoring to track interventions and effect and 
to link intervention and student performance data across other systems.  We need to 
ensure that every child has access to early childhood opportunities.  She encouraged 
continuing with Big Sky Pathways for each community as an opportunity to grow the 
economy and prepare students for jobs at hand.  Regent McLean wants to see 
expanded dual enrollment and system wide unified professional development.   

 Regent Paul Tuss stressed the need to expand research enterprise at the 
Montana University System.   Montana expends $195 million on university based 



research while the average for western states is $467 million.    Montana also needs to 
work harder on a college affordability plan.    

 Board of Public Education member, John Edwards stated that his priorities would 
be seat belts for school buses in Montana and to reinstitute general civic education in 
schools.   He stated Superintendent Juneau was doing good job and getting teachers to 
know how to have a voice and be heard in the process.   

 Regent Jeffrey Krauss stated his priority was to extend outreach for veterans to 
reenter education.  Veterans need to know how to transfer military classes into college 
credit not just as electives but to apply to their degree.   Veterans need to achieve the 
60% degree/certification goal as well.  Regent Krauss proposed a one stop shopping at 
the internet level, (ie. how you can apply for your benefits, who do you need to see at a 
campus, and how we can help you succeed).  He did not feel it should be necessary for 
veterans to wait a year to become a resident.    He suggested we offer classes on line 
to active duty military to get them here after they are discharged.  Veterans have 
different needs and campuses need to learn how to deal with veterans.    

 Board of Public Education member Paul Anderson, suggested that educators 
and parents need to talk to kids about their future as they go through school.   They 
need to ask students, what is your next step?  Students want relevance in what they’re 
doing.    

 Executive Secretary of the Board of Public Education, Pete Donovan commented 
that he was pleased the Governor has placed education at top of his agenda and feels 
public education in Montana one of our greatest assets. 

 Commissioner Clay Christian voiced his agreement with Mr. Donovan’s 
comments.  The top of his list is working toward the goal of higher achievement for adult 
learners – how to get there and how to get there in larger numbers.   Lowering the cost 
of credit hours is nearly impossible, but lowering the cost to get a degree is workable.   
Having students prepared for college will help achieve that goal.  A robust research 
agenda needs to be on the forefront for Montana.  Other states that have put it as a 
priority have seen education grow and economic development come from it.  Education 
needs to be receptive to workforce needs.  He would like to see us work closely with 
partners in state and federal government to bring financial aid resources together.  
Students need to be thinking about this early on in high school and find a way to 
supplement financial aid at the federal level with what we can offer in Montana. 

 Regent Todd Buchanan stated we need to advance community colleges because 
affordability is a priority.  Tuition is only a part of the cost of education.  Montana has 



one of the highest gaps between college debt loads and incomes in the region.  We 
need to incentivize students to go from 13-18 credits and incentivize districts to 
participate in dual enrollment.  He suggested giving teachers help to complete their 
master’s degree programs so we can have dual enrollment in rural areas.  Regent 
Buchanan commented on the work of the recent legislature and boards and encouraged 
education partners to stay at the table and work together. 

 Board of Public Education member Erin Williams stated that her experience was 
with disadvantaged children.   Early childhood education is a priority for those children.  
She would like to look to publicly funded preschools to help children close the 
achievement gap and become good learners.   

 Regent Major Robinson stated that meetings like this show where common 
ground and gaps are.  It is a great asset in Montana to have 20% nationally of tribal 
colleges working to make sure Native Americans have opportunities.  He asked the 
board to keep in mind our tribal communities and struggles they have, to hold the bar up 
and give support.  He encouraged the Board and Governor Bullock to focus on four or 
five key points for the next two years with a view toward the next legislative session.  He 
feels early education is the most critical.  He would like all students have opportunities 
and believe they apply to them and for them to see the options at an earlier age.    He 
encouraged goal setting within the schools, asking often “what do you want to do, how 
can we help you.” 

 Board of Public Education member Sharon Carroll stated she was passionate 
about Montana’s Content and Performance Standards in all curricular areas.  They 
strengthen student opportunities in education.  She encouraged using data generated 
by the Smarter Balanced Assessment and the ACT administered to juniors.   

 Board of Public Education Chair, Patty Myers encouraged opening the lines of 
communication between members of the boards, OCHE, OPI and the Governor’s office.   
She reminded the Board that what they witnessed during the legislative session this 
time was what collaboration does.  SB 175 is an example.  Cooperation between 
education groups focused on one purpose worked.  She also commented on how 
important early childhood education is and the importance of the Montana School for 
the Deaf and Blind.  MSDB has a problem recruiting and retaining educators.  She 
would like to see the higher education programs address the needs of the MSDB. 

 Governor Bullock opened the meeting for comments from the public. 

 



 Marco Ferro from MEA-MFT stated that their members provide a common thread 
in all the issues discussed today.  He was happy to see that Head Start and early 
childhood education are on the docket.  He encouraged the Board to get MEA-MFT 
members involved and use their experience and expertise.  Digital learning and dual 
enrollment have been successful in Montana.  The Digital Academy through MEA-MFT 
received a grant to provide on-line educational opportunities.  They fully support 
educators getting their master’s degrees to increase dual enrollment opportunities in 
Montana.   They want to be involved in the conversation and want to provide 
perspective and assistance from their members.  

 Royce Engstrom, President of the University of Montana thanked the Board for 
the discussion.  Excitement about education is evident in the communities and affects 
our quality of life.   Thinking in the K-20 sense begins in kindergarten when teachers 
excite students about the world around them. Types of research concepts introduced at 
an early level are critical.  Research is not just for honor/graduate students, but for all 
levels.  Use research as a tool to entice students at an early age to pursue education all 
the way through.   

 Governor Bullock closed expressing his appreciation that each person touched 
on areas they are passionate about.  Discussion alone doesn’t lead to change.  The 
Board needs to take their passions and collaborate and work together to set mutual 
goals.  Change is effected by coming together and working together as a unified front.   
We need to celebrate successes of education system throughout the state, not being 
afraid to be disrupters at times.   

 The meeting adjourned. 

 

      /s/ Denise Juneau 
      Denise Juneau, Secretary 
 

       



 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance  
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Items may be pulled from Consent Agenda if 
                          requested 

 
 

A. Correspondence 
B. November 15th, 2013 Minutes 
C. Financials 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CORRESPONDENCE 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 





MINUTES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
       MEETING MINUTES 

VisionNet Conference Call 
 

November 15, 2013 
Office of Public Instruction 

1300 11th Ave 
Helena MT 

 
 
Friday, November 15, 2013 
8:30 AM 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 8:41 AM by Chair Carroll. 
 
Board members present in Helena included: Ms. Sharon Carroll, Chair; Ms. Patty Myers.  Board members 
present via VisionNet included: Mr. Bernie Olson, Vice-Chair; Ms. Erin Williams; Mr. Paul Andersen; Ms. 
Charity Ratliff.  Staff present in Helena included: Mr. Pete Donovan, Executive Director; Ms. Kris 
Stockton, Administrative Assistant.  Guests present in Helena included: Mr. Dennis Parman, OPI; Mr. Neil 
Moisey, OCHE; Ms. Shannon O’Brien, Governor’s Office via VisionNet; Ms. Nancy Coopersmith, OPI; Ms. 
Linda Peterson, OPI; Ms. Ann Gilkey, OPI; Mr. Tim Ravndal, Townsend, MT; Mr. Derek Brouwer, Helena 
Independent Record; Dr. Kirk Miller, School Administrators of Montana; Mr. Pat Schlauh, Student 
Assistance Foundation; Ms. Molly Wilkins, AmericaCorp Volunteer. 
   
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mr. Tim Ravndal submitted public comment regarding his opposition to the Montana Common Core 
Standards. 
 
No other public comment was given. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Consent agenda adopted as presented. 
 
ADOPT AGENDA 
Agenda adopted as presented. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

 REPORTS – Sharon Carroll (Items 1-6) 
    

Item 1   CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT 
   Sharon Carroll 
 
Ms. Carroll updated the Board on the joint presentation by the Board, OPI, and Commissioner’s Office at 
the MEA-MFT Conference in October.  Ms. Myers discussed the By-Laws revision. 
 
ACTION 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

November 15th, 2013 Board of Public Education  Page 1 
 



 

The public will be afforded the opportunity to comment before the Board on every action 
item on the agenda prior to final Board action. 
 

• By-Laws Revision 
    

Ms. Patty Myers moved to approve the Board of Public Education By-Laws 
as presented in the agenda packet.  Motion seconded by Mr. Bernie Olson. 

 
   No discussion. Motion passed. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
      
Item 2   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
   Pete Donovan 
Mr. Donovan updated the Board on upcoming events and meetings he will be attending, in particular the 
Board of Regents meeting where Mr. Donovan and Superintendent Juneau will be discussing Common 
Core with the Schools of Education.  Mr. Donovan also discussed the report he will be giving for the 
Board of Public Education at the Education and Local Government Interim Committee in December.  
 
9:08 AM break to handle some technical difficulties on OPI. 
9:12 reconvened. 
 
Item 3   STATE SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
   Dennis Parman 
Mr. Dennis Parman gave the report for the Superintendent of Public Instruction.  Mr. Parman discussed 
the waiver OPI received from the Department of Education to not double test students for the 2013-14 
academic year and use the Smarter Balanced Assessment testing instead. Ms. Carroll asked if 
sophomores will be tested or juniors this year.  Mr. Parman answered that juniors are the target but that 
Smarter Balanced would also like to test freshman and sophomores in the future as well.  Mr. Parman 
added that the Science portion will still be assessed via the CRT test since the science piece is not yet 
ready for Smarter Balanced.  Mr. Parman also updated the Board with a new international assessment 
report and that Montana scored very high in those results, his travels across the state updating schools 
and parents on Common Core, an update on Graduation Matters Montana and new partners joining the 
effort, and an Alternative Learning conference in Great Falls the previous week. 
 
Item 4   COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION’S REPORT 
   Commissioner Clayton Christian 
Dr. Neil Moisey gave the update for the Commissioner’s Office.  Dr. Moisey discussed the collaborative 
efforts between OPI, BPE, and Commissioner’s Office in K-20.  In addition issues such as dual 
enrollment, and developmental education to name a few were highlighted.  The OCHE office is working 
on defining College Readiness, and increasing dual enrollment opportunities as well as looking at aligning 
math requirements and competencies with the different types of degree opportunities, and a common 
math assessment for placement. 
 
Item 5   GOVERNOR’S OFFICE REPORT 
   Shannon O’Brien 
Ms. Shannon O’Brien extended thanks from the Governor to the Board for their hard work and service.  
Ms. O’Brien also discussed the upcoming Board of Education meeting on January 7th, 2014 at 1:30, and 
gave an update on the Race to the Top Early Childhood grant the state applied for.  The grant is $37 
million dollars over 4 years.  Ms. O’Brien discussed the Governor’s interest for dual enrollment 
opportunities, addressing the issue of high school drop outs and the possibility of a Task Force to discuss 
the issue and working with OPI and their Graduation Matters Initiative. 
 

November 15th, 2013 Board of Public Education  Page 2 
 



 

Item 6   STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT 
   Charity Ratliff 
Ms. Ratliff updated the Board on her recent activities including her report at the State Student Council 
Conference, resolutions presented at the Conference, and a report on her attendance at the National 
Student Council Conference.  Ms. Ratliff will give a more detailed report on the National Conference at 
the January meeting.  Ms. Ratliff also noted that March 16th, 2014 the Student Rep interviews will be 
conducted and invited any interested Board members to attend. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Sharon Carroll (Items 7-8) 
 
Item 7   FEDERAL UPDATE 
   Nancy Coopersmith  
Ms. Coopersmith updated the Board on the status of the Sequestration Cuts now that the Federal Budget 
has been extended to January 15th, 2014.  Ms. Coopersmith summarized the cuts and the programs 
affected, including Head Start, Early Childhood, Special Education, Title I, and Impact Aid.  Ms. 
Coopersmith also updated the Board on a bill that passed the House that would require schools to 
conduct a background check on any individual with unsupervised time with a student. The bill has not yet 
passed the Senate.  Ms. Coopersmith also discussed the waiver received for no double testing. 
 
Item 8   ANNUAL RENEWAL UNIT PROVIDERS REPORT 
   Elizabeth Keller 
Ms. Keller presented the Board with the list of Annual Renewal Unit providers as required. 
 

 ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – Paul Andersen (Item 9) 
 
Item 9   ACT RESULTS 
   Dennis Parman 
Mr. Parman discussed the results of the ACT administered to all high school juniors in the spring of 2013.  
The statewide results dropped slightly, as predicted, with 100% taking the test, but that score is expected 
to increase over time. 
 
ACTION 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
The public will be afforded the opportunity to comment before the Board on every action 
item on the agenda prior to final Board action. 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – John Edwards (Items 10-11) 
 
Item 10 ACTION ON THE STATE EXIT REPORT AND FULL ACCREDITATION FOR 

THE PHYLLIS J WASHINGTON (PJW) COLLEGE OF EDUCATION AND 
HUMAN SCIENCES AT THE UNIVERSITY OF MONTANA 

 Dr. Linda Peterson 
Dr. Peterson reviewed for the Board this Action item.  Dr. Peterson reviewed the report for the Board, 
then Dr. Susan Whalen-Harper discussed the accreditation review and the exit report. 
 

Ms. Patty Myers moved that the BPE approves the State Exit Report, adopts 
the NCATE Board of Examiners report, and gives full accreditation and 
program approval of the Phyllis J Washington College of Education and 

November 15th, 2013 Board of Public Education  Page 3 
 



 

Human Services at the University of Montana. Motion was seconded by Ms. 
Erin Williams. 

 
   No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously via roll call vote.   
 
Item 11 ACTION ON A NEW PROGRAM IN BROADFIELD SCIENCE FOR THE 

PHYLLIS J WASHINGTON (PJW) COLLEGE OF EDUCATION AND HUMAN 
SCIENCES AT THE UNIVERSITY OF MONTANA 

 Dr. Linda Peterson 
Dr. Peterson reviewed the request from the University for a new program in Science Broadfield – Physics 
at the University of Montana.  Ms. Kristi Murphy discussed the background in developing the program. 
 

Ms. Patty Myers moved that the BPE provisionally approves the new 
program of Science Broadfield – Physics for the secondary education 
curriculum of the Phyllis J. Washington College of Education and Human 
Services at the University of Montana. Motion was seconded by Mr. Bernie 
Olson. 

 
   No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously via roll call vote. 
 

 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – Bernie Olson (Item 12-13) 
 
Item 12 ACTION ON THE STATE SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATIONS OF 

THE VARIANCES TO STANDARDS APPLICATIONS 
 Dennis Parman 
Mr. Parman reviewed why these two applications were not in the original submission of applications. 
 
 Mr. Bernie Olson moved to approve the Superintendent’s recommendation 

for the Variance to Standards to ARM 10.55.701 for Darby Elementary 
School, Darby 7-8 School, Darby High School, and Powell County High 
School.  Motion was seconded by Ms. Patty Myers. 

 
 No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously via roll call vote.  
  
Item 13 ACTION ON HELENA PUBLIC SCHOOLS REQUEST FOR VARIANCE TO 

ARM 10.55.710 
 Bernie Olson 
 
 Mr. Bernie Olson moved the Board of Public Education adopt the 

Superintendent’s recommendation for a variance to ARM 10.55.710 for 
Helena elementary schools: Broadwater Elementary School, Bryant 
Elementary School, Central Elementary School, Four Georgians Elementary 
School, Hawthorne Elementary School, Jefferson Elementary School, Jim 
Darcy Elementary School, Kessler Elementary School, Rossiter Elementary 
School, Smith Elementary School, and Warren Elementary School with the 
following stipulations: a) That there must be a school counselor assigned 
to each elementary school b) The current use of licensed clinical social 
workers to meet counselor standards under 10.55.710 and 10.55.1901 must 
sunset at the start of the 2017 school year and c) granting this variance 
does not establish a precendent for the use of social workers or any other 
individuals or groups not licensed or endorsed under ARM 10.55.604. 
Motion was seconded by Ms. Patty Myers. 

November 15th, 2013 Board of Public Education  Page 4 
 



 

Dr. Kultgen asked when the part of the motion regarding having a school counselor assigned to each 
elementary school became effective.  Chair Carroll clarified it would begin with the start of the second 
semester of the current school year (2013-14). 
 
   No further discussion.  Motion passed unanimously via roll call vote. 
 
Dr. Kultgen thanked the Board for their work and for the collaboration to get this item passed and that the 
school district will work towards the goal. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

 MSDB LIAISON  - Lila Taylor (Item 14) 
 
Item 14   MSDB REPORT 
   Lila Taylor 
Ms. Myers updated the Board on the recent MSDB meetings and happenings, including a visit from Lt. 
Governor Walsh to the school.  
 
Request for Public Comment from Chair Carroll.   
No public comment was made. 
 
Ms. Carroll also introduced Derek Brouwer from the Independent Record, and Molly Wilkins, AmericaCorp 
Vista Volunteer for Montana College Access Network working with Student Assistance Foundation. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS January 6-7th, 2014 
Exiting Board Member-Last Meeting 
Transportation Report 
MACIE Update 
Annual School Food Services Report 
Assessment Update 
Federal Update 
Accreditation Report 
Educator Preparation Program Report 
5 YCEP Process Update 
 

Ms. Myers moved to adjourn the meeting.  Motion was seconded by Mr. 
Olson. 

 
ADJOURN 
Meeting adjourned at 11:32 AM. 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The Montana Board of Public Education is a Renewal Unit Provider.  Attending a Board of Public Education Meeting may qualify you 
to receive renewal units.  One hour of contact time = 1 renewal unit up to 8 renewal units per day.  Please complete the necessary 
information on the sign-in sheet if you are applying for renewal units.    
 
Agenda items are handled in the order listed on the approved agenda.  Items may be rearranged unless listed “time certain”.  Action 
may be taken by the Board on any item listed on the agenda.  Public comment is welcome on all items.  The Board of Public 
Education will make reasonable accommodations for known disabilities that may interfere with an individual’s ability to participate in 
the meeting.  Individuals who require such accommodations should make requests to the Board of Public Education as soon as 
possible prior to the meeting start date.  You may write to: Kris Stockton, PO Box 200601, Helena MT, 59620, email at: 
kmstockton@mt.gov or phone at 444-0302. 
 

November 15th, 2013 Board of Public Education  Page 5 
 

mailto:kmstockton@mt.gov


 

 
 

November 15th, 2013 Board of Public Education  Page 6 
 



FINANCIALS 
 

  



ORG Bud by OBPP Prog,Fund,Subcl 1 of 1

51010 Board of Public Education
ORG Budget Summary by OBPP Prog, Fund, Subclass
Data Selected for Month/FY:    01 (Jul)/2014 through 06 (Dec)/2014

This report compares ORG Budgets (ORG_BD) to Actuals expended amounts

Business Unit (All)
Program Year (All)
FY_BudPer (All)
Month (All)
Source of Auth (All)
Fund Type (All)
Account (All)
Project (All)
Acct Lvl 2 (All) Return to Menu
Ledger (All)

OBPP Program Fund Subclass Org Acct Lvl 1 ORG Budget Actuals Amt A Accrual Amt ORG Bud Balance
01 K-12 EDUCATION 387,948.00 122,022.37 0.00 265,925.63

01100 General Fund 215,764.00 63,717.12 0.00 152,046.88
235H1 ADMINISTRATION 199,196.00 63,717.12 0.00 135,478.88

1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 199,196.00 63,717.12 0.00 135,478.88
61000 Personal Services 174,559.00 45,187.93 0.00 129,371.07
62000 Operating Expenses 22,855.00 18,529.19 0.00 4,325.81
69000 Debt Service 1,782.00 0.00 0.00 1,782.00

235H2 AUDIT (RST/BIEN) 16,418.00 0.00 0.00 16,418.00
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 16,418.00 0.00 0.00 16,418.00

62000 Operating Expenses 16,418.00 0.00 0.00 16,418.00

235Z1 WORKERS COMP. REDUCTION 150.00 0.00 0.00 150.00
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 150.00 0.00 0.00 150.00

61000 Personal Services 150.00 0.00 0.00 150.00

02122 Advisory Council 117,184.00 42,780.22 0.00 74,403.78
235H1 ADMINISTRATION 116,810.00 42,780.22 0.00 74,029.78

30 Advisory Council Program 01 116,810.00 42,780.22 0.00 74,029.78
61000 Personal Services 116,810.00 42,780.22 0.00 74,029.78

235Z1 WORKERS COMP. REDUCTION 374.00 0.00 0.00 374.00
30 Advisory Council Program 01 374.00 0.00 0.00 374.00

61000 Personal Services 374.00 0.00 0.00 374.00

02219 Research Fund 55,000.00 15,525.03 0.00 39,474.97
235H1 ADMINISTRATION 55,000.00 15,525.03 0.00 39,474.97

50 Research Program 01 55,000.00 15,525.03 0.00 39,474.97
61000 Personal Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
62000 Operating Expenses 55,000.00 15,525.03 0.00 39,474.97
69000 Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Grand Total 387,948.00 122,022.37 0.00 265,925.63

Refresh 



CALENDARS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

November 2013
1 2 

3 5 4 6 7 

13 14 

8 9 

10 12 11 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 

Notes: 

26 27 28 29 30 

Veteran's Day 

BPE Meeting - Helena 

TLLC Workgroup - Pete 

Board of Regents Meeting - Pete Montana Digital 
Academy Call - Pete Evaluation System 

Workgroup - Pete 

MSDB Fall 
Cottage Dinner - 
Pete, Patty 

Teachscape Demo - 
Pete 

Pupil Transportation 
Meeting w/OPI - 
Pete, Kris 

MSDB 
Committee Call - 
Pete, Patty, 
Bernie, Sharon 



Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

December 2013
7 

8 9 13 14 

20 21 

27 28 

15 16 

22 23 

29 

10 12 11 

17 19 18 

24 26 25 

30 31 

1 

Notes: 

Christmas Day 

2 3 4 5 6 
Education & Local 
Govt Intermin 
Committee 
Meeting - Pete 

Dual Enrollment 
Expansion Workgroup 
- Pete 

Entrance Meeting for 
2014 Audit - Pete, Kris 

Montana Digital 
Academy Call - Pete Class 8 Licensure 

Meeting - Pete 

Dual Enrollment 
Expansion 
Workgroup - Pete 

Meeting w/Shannon 
O'Brien - Pete 

Dual Enrollment 
Workgroup 
Conference Call - Pete 

Montana College 
Access Network 
Meeting - Pete 

Healthy Schools 
Network Meeting - 
Pete 

School Staffing 
Leadership Mtg - Pete 
Dual Enrollment 
Expansion Workgroup 
- Pete 

Data 
Governance Call 
- Sharon 



Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

January 2014

1 2   

7 8 9 

4 

5 

3 

6 

14 15 16 

11 

12 

10 

13 

21 

18 

19 

17 

20 22 

Notes: 

23 24 25 

26 29 27 28 30 31 

Board of Public Education Meeting 

Board of Education 
Meeting 

Board of Regents Meeting - Pete 



INFORMATION 
 
 

   REPORTS – Sharon Carroll (Item 1) 
 
 

ITEM 1 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT 
 

Sharon Carroll 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
STATE OF MONTANA 

 
BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 

 
BYLAWS 

 
Article I.  Name 

 
The legal name of the Board is the Board of Public Education. 
 

Article II.  Objective 
 

The objective of the Board is to carry out its constitutional and statutory 
responsibility to exercise general supervision, in cooperation with the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction, over the public school system and other 
such public educational institutions as may be assigned by law. 
 

Article III.  Membership 
 

The Board consists of seven members appointed by the Governor and confirmed 
by the Senate.  Not more than four may be from each of the two commission 
districts per MCA 5-1-102 (2) (a) (b), and not more than four may be affiliated 
with the same political party.  The Governor, Superintendent of Public Instruction 
and Commissioner of Higher Education are ex officio, non-voting members of the 
Board.  There is also a non-voting student member.  The terms of members 
appointed to the Board shall be seven years.  When a vacancy occurs, the 
Governor shall appoint a member for the remainder of the term of the incumbent.  
Members appointed to the Board, before discharging their duties, shall take and 
subscribe to the constitutional oath of office.   
 

Article IV.  Officers 
 

The officers of the Board shall consist of a Chairperson and Vice Chairperson.  
The Chairperson and Vice Chairperson shall be elected among the appointed 
membership for the period of one year; annual reelection is permissible.  Election 
of the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson shall be conducted by voice vote.  The 
Chairperson and Vice Chairperson elect shall assume their respective office 
upon adjournment of the meeting at which they were elected.  If the office of the 
Chairperson or Vice Chairperson is vacated prior to the expiration of the term, 
the Board will hold an election to fill the vacated office; the newly elected officer 
will serve for the remainder of the unexpired term and assume the gavel 
immediately.  The duties of the Chairperson shall include presiding at meetings, 
participation in the construction of meeting agendas and appointing all 
committees.  The Chairperson shall vote on all matters.  In the absence of the 

Approved November 15, 2013 
 



 

Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson shall preside and shall perform such duties as 
are prescribed for the Chairperson. 
 

Article V.  Executive Director 
 

The Board shall appoint, prescribe the term and duties, and establish the salary 
of the Executive Director.  The Executive Director shall serve as administrator to 
the Board and also as liaison between the Board and the Superintendent of 
Public Instruction, the Commissioner of Higher Education, the Legislature and 
the Governor’s office. 
 

Article VI.  Meetings 
 

According to law, the Board shall meet at least quarterly.  Special meetings may 
be called by the Governor, the chairperson of the Board, the Executive Director, 
or a request in writing of four regular appointed members.  When necessary, the 
Board may hold meetings for resolution of specific agenda items either by a 
meeting in person, by conference call or by a combination of both.  In the case of 
a special meeting, the Executive Director shall notify each regular and ex officio 
member either by e-mail, mail, or by telephone sufficiently in advance of the 
meeting to allow all Board members to travel to the meeting site from their 
principal Montana residence. 
 
In case of a conference call, twenty-four hours prior to the meeting shall be 
deemed adequate notice. 
 
The Board of Public Education and the Board of Regents shall meet at least 
twice yearly as the State Board of Education per MCA 20-2-101. 
 

Article VII.  Quorum 
 

A majority of the appointed members shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business. 
 

Article VIII.  Committees 
 
Standing committees shall be as follows: 
 

1. An Executive Committee:  composed of the Chairperson, Vice 
Chairperson and the Executive Director; 

 
2. An Accreditation Committee; 

 
3. A Licensure Committee; 

 
4. A School for the Deaf and Blind Committee; 

Approved November 15, 2013 
 



 

 
5. A Legislative Committee. 

 
Special committees may be appointed by the Chairperson of the Board as the 
Board shall deem necessary to carry out the responsibilities of the Board. 
 
Duties of the committees shall be to review, report on, and make 
recommendations concerning any item referred to them and to alert the Board 
Chairperson and Executive Director on any matters which should be placed on 
the agenda for Board discussion action.  The Chairperson and the Executive 
Director shall serve as ex officio, non-voting members of all committees. 
 
The Board shall establish a School for the Deaf and Blind Committee.  The 
committee is responsible for the general supervision and control over the school, 
subject to the powers of the Board set forth by this by-law.  The committee shall 
meet at the school on a regular basis, not less than six times annually.  The 
Chairperson of the committee shall report on the activities of the committee to the 
full Board of Public Education at each regular Board meeting.  The Board retains 
the power to overrule or amend any decision of the committee by majority vote of 
the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.  Any member of the Board may by 
motion bring before the Board any matter on which the committee has acted. 
 
One Board of Public Education member will be appointed by the Chairperson 
and approved by the entire Board to serve on the School for the Deaf and Blind 
Foundation.  Other members of the Foundation Board are appointed by the 
MSDB Board of Directors MSDB Foundation Board of Directors. 
 

Article IX.  Sessions 
 

All committee meetings, telephone conference calls, and regular sessions of the 
Board shall be open to the public.  The Chairperson may close the meeting to the 
public if he or she determines: 
 

a. That the demand of individual privacy clearly exceeds the merits of 
public disclosure, or 

b. That an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the 
bargaining or the litigating position of the Board. 

 
This action will be taken by a decision of the Chairperson or a vote of the Board.  
The Chairperson shall read for the minutes the reason for the closing, or the 
minutes will show that the person in question requested a closed session.  A 
record will be made of business conducted during a closed session and will be 
kept in a sealed file subject to opening only by a court order.   
 
Telephone, video conference action, or a combination of the two, providing a 
quorum is participating in the call, shall be legitimate for transaction of business 

Approved November 15, 2013 
 



 

necessary in between meetings.  The minutes of all telephone conference 
meetings shall be approved at the next regular meeting of the Board. 
 

Article X.  Order of Business 
 

The regular order of business shall be as follows: 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 
4. Statement of Public Participation 
5. Welcome Visitors 
6. Items Pulled from Consent Agenda 
7. Consent Agenda Adoption 
8. Agenda Adoption 
9. Agenda 
10. Date and Place of Next Meeting 
11. Adjournment 

 
Article XI.  Communications 

 
All official communications should come to the attention of the Board through the 
Executive Director of the Board. 
 

Article XII.  Parliamentary Procedure 
 

The current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall prevail on questions of 
parliamentary procedure. 
 

Article XIII.  Amendments 
 

These bylaws may be added to or amended by a majority vote at any meeting of 
the Board of Public Education provided that a quorum is present and provided 
that the proposed amendment is sent in writing to members of the Board of 
Public Education at least seven days in advance. 

Approved November 15, 2013 
 



ITEM 2 
 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
 
 

Peter Donovan 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meetings Attended by Peter Donovan 
11/21/2013 – 01/09/2014 

 
 

November 
 

 
1. Montana Digital Academy Call     11/18/2013 

 
2. Evaluation System Workgroup     11/20/2013 

 
3. Board of Regents Meeting-MSU     11/21-22/2013 

 
4. MSDB Cottage Fall Dinner      11/24/2013 

 
5. Teachscape Demo       11/25/2013 

 
6. Pupil Transportation Meeting w/OPI    11/26/2013 

 
 

December 
 

7. Education & Local Government Interim Committee Meeting 12/02/2013 
 

8. Dual Enrollment Expansion Workgroup Meeting   12/03/2013 
 

9. Entrance Meeting for 2014 Legislative Audit   12/05/2013 
 

10. Montana Digital Academy Call     12/09/2013 
 

11. Class 8 Licensure Meeting      12/10/2013 
 

12. Dual Enrollment Expansion Workgroup    12/10/2013 
 

13. Meeting with Shannon O’Brien     12/12/2013 
 

14. Dual Enrollment Workgroup Conference Call   12/16/2013 
 

15. Montana College Access Network Meeting   12/17/2013 
 

16. Healthy Schools Network      12/18/2013 
 

17. School Staffing Leadership Meeting    12/19/2013 
 

18. Dual Enrollment Expansion Workgroup    12/19/2013 
 

 
 
 
 



January 
 

19. Board of Public Education Meeting     01/06-07/2014 
 

20. Board of Education Meeting     01/07/2014 
 

21. Board of Regents Meeting      01/08-09/2014   
 

 
 

 
 



 REPORTS (Items 3-6) 
 
 

ITEM 3 
 
 

STATE SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
 

State Superintendent Denise Juneau 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ITEM 4 
 
 

COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER 
EDUCATION’S REPORT 

 
 

Commissioner Clayton Christian 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ITEM 5 
 
 

GOVERNOR’S OFFICE REPORT 
 
 

Shannon O’Brien 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ITEM 6 
 
 

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
 

Charity Ratliff 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DISCUSSION  
 

 MSDB LIAISON (Item 7) 
Lila Taylor 

 
ITEM 7 

 
MSDB REPORT 

 
Lila Taylor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Montana School for the Deaf and the Blind 
Board of Public Education Committee Minutes 

October 30, 2013  
 
The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Myers at 4:08 PM with board members Carroll, 
and Taylor present.  Also present were Pete Donovan, Kim Schawbe, Donna Schmidt, Jim Kelly 
and Steve Gettel.   
 
1. Student Enrollment/Evaluations  Kim Schwabe reported there are 46 students enrolled in the 
campus program. This is an increase of 4 students since September.  There are 3 new referrals 
for on campus for placements with an additional referral to be considered in November.   
• 19 VI 
• 27 DHH 

o 37 Elem 
 2 IFSP (VI), 1 IFSP (DHH) 
 5 IEP primary (VI), 20 primary (DHH) 
 8 IEP secondary (VI), 1 secondary (DHH) 

o 9 HS 
 3 IEP primary (VI), 4 primary (DHH) 
 1 IEP secondary (VI), 1 secondary (DHH) 

 
2.  Human Resources 
Steve Gettel reported there have been no resignations since August 28th.  Currently there is one 
vacancy  the Student Services program (See Jim Kelly’s report under Student Services.)    
 
Steve Gettel reported that negotiations with the UFCW representing Student Services and 
General Services staff were completed on September 27th with unit ratification on October 4th. 
The agreement increases pay by 3% effective July1, 2013 and 5% effective November 15, 2014.  
There were no other changes to the contract. 
 
Steve Gettel reported that the Foundation secretary, Cheryl Devine will be retiring on December 
31st.  The school has discussed the possibility of combining the Foundation secretary duties with 
those of the school’s central administration secretary.  There is opportunity to increase some 
operational efficiencies.  There are also concerns about how to clearly account for work time and 
payroll costs for the Foundation’s portion of the position.  Steve is currently seeking some 
guidance from staff at the Department of Administration but initially it seems this can be done if 
both boards agree.  Steve will report back to the Board at the November meeting.  
 
3.  Education Program  
Kim Schwabe reported on recent staff development which included training on the Montana 
Common Core Standards, and “Untangling the Dots” workshop held at the school on October 
17th and 18th.  Students and staff celebrated White Cane Day on October 15th and Lt. Governor 
Walsh was here to participate in a reception.  The school also had its official kick off of the 
Olweus anti bully program on October 23rd with student made PSAs and a visit from the 
Voyager’s mascot, Orbit and retired teacher Gary Mc Manus.   
 
The Expressions of Silence recently performed in Bozeman at several public schools and Red 
Ribbon Week is October 28th through November 1st. We are at the end of the first quarter which 
is October 30th.  
 

1 
 



Kim reported she and Jan Nelson are completing work on our TEAMs report for OPI (the ADC).  
Donna Schmidt commented that all required staff have been assigned a SEID and our Terms of 
Employment data (TOE) was uploaded to the OPI site earlier in the month.   
 
Kim also reported that most of the new math textbooks and materials which had been ordered 
jointly with the GFPS have arrived and are being distributed.  The Continuous School 
Improvement Plan for this year has been submitted to OPI.  
 
4.  Outreach Program  
Steve Gettel reported that there were 35 participants in the “Untangling the Dots” Braille 
instruction workshop held over Teachers Convention at MSDB.  This workshop is held annually 
to support instructors of Braille who are working to meet the OPI accreditation standard.  The 
workshop is supported in part by the Part B grant from OPI. Steve also reported Donna Sorensen 
is collecting information from consultants about the number of educational interpreters, 
orientation and mobility, and instructors of Braille services assigned to IEPs of students in the 
local districts as well as the number of IEPs where identified services are not in place.  Steve 
discussed 20-8-102 MCA that states, “The school upon request shall ensure that services and 
programs for hearing impaired or visually impaired children are appropriate and sufficient.”  
Steve said the data being collected will be given to OPI for informational purposes.  He said 
there are at least two districts know to outreach staff where services are identified on IEPs but 
not being provided and there can be a number of reasons why that is the case. Steve said that 
MSDB cannot “ensure” services in local districts are sufficient.  Board member Taylor asked 
why he said that.  He stated the school has no authority to monitor LEA compliance with special 
education regulations.  That is the responsibility of the OPI. 
 
 The Deaf and Hard of Hearing Enrichment Weekend (DEW) was held October 11th and 12th on 
campus with 30 students attending from the local districts and our school.  Biology was the 
theme and it was very successful.  This weekend is planned by outreach staff with school and 
cottage staff helping with the educational and social activities. 
 
Steve reported that Donna Sorensen will represent MSDB on the state team for the PEPNet 
regional summit on Building State Capacity for Deaf and Hard of Hearing students in Chicago, 
November 6th through the 8th, and the National Summit in Denver in January.  The series of 
meetings is designed to support efforts to build capacity in states and support the exchange of 
information and strategies for improving educational programs, services, and outcomes for 
students who are deaf or hard of hearing. 
 
5.  Student Services Program  
Jim Kelly reported on Sunday, October 6th the students had a dinner in the activity room. This 
year each month they will have a dinner with an international theme.  In October it was a 
German theme and various German food dishes were prepared by the students and staff.  Next 
month it will be a Mexican theme. 
 
On October 11th and 12th was the Deaf Enrichment Weekend.  This was organized by the 
Outreach staff, spearheaded by Jennifer Wasson, MSDB Teacher and Outreach Consultant and 
Laura Copp, MSDB Outreach Consultant. The event was well attended and students seemed to 
have a good time. The focus was on science and included some pretty interesting activities for 
the students.  Participants from out of town stayed in the cottages at no cost to them.     
 

2 
 



Students traveled home for the MEA/Teacher Convention break earlier this month and they will 
travel home on Friday, November 1st and return on the 3rd.  This is one of the “extra” travels that 
were added in last year.   
 
Several of the younger students are involved in the Heisey Youth Basketball program and have 
just begun practices.  The Cottage Life Attendants and Counselors who transport the students 
also serve as the interpreter.    
 
Kids went to some of the haunted houses in Great Falls the weekend prior to Halloween. On 
Halloween they may go to the activities at the UGF or the mall.  Will be low keyed this year.  
Younger students will have trick or treating at the school on Halloween.    
 
    6.  Safety and Facilities      
Donna Schmidt reported on a meeting that was held on campus with Jim Whaley from the 
Architecture and Engineering Division and the status of the door security/keycard system in 
Glacier Hall and cottage window replacement projects.   
 
7.  Budget and Finance      
Donna Schmidt reported on expenditures to date which continues to be in-line with the budget. 
    
8.  School Calendar of Events  
Oct. 31: Halloween Activities along with our October Celebrations assembly 
Nov 1-3 Travel Home – Early Out  
Nov 4: Olweus class meetings start  
Nov 7 -8: VI Focus  
Nov 8 – 9: VI Goalball Enrichment weekend 
Nov 26 – Dec 1: Travel Home (Early Out) Staff Harvest Potluck & and Thanksgiving Vacation 
Nov 29: November Celebrations assembly 
 
9.  Public Comment for Non Agenda Items  
There was no public comment.   
 
Steve Gettel and Chairman Myers discussed a recent meeting with Tammy Lacey, 
Superintendent of the GFPS regarding potential nominees for the next BOPE member when 
Myer’s term expires.  Steve asked if members of the MSDB Committee of the Board would be 
appointed in December.  Board member Carroll will assume chairmanship of the Board in 
January but doesn’t expect a new member to be appointed until at least January.   
 
10.  Action Items   
There were no action items taken up by the Board. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:55.  The next committee meeting will be on Wednesday, 
November 20th at 4:00 PM. 

 
 

3 
 



 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (Item 8) 
Sharon Carroll 

 
ITEM 8 

 
PUPIL TRANSPORTATION REPORT 

 
Donell Rosenthal 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









 LICENSURE COMMITTEE (Items 9-10) 
Lila Taylor 

 
ITEM 9 

 
EDUCATOR PREPARATION PROGRAM 

REPORT 
 

Dr. Linda Peterson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









http://www.carroll.edu/
mailto:jmatthew@carroll.edu




http://www.montana.edu/
mailto:jsb@montana.edu






http://www.msun.edu/
virginia.braithwaite@msun.edu
virginia.braithwaite@msun.edu




http://www.msubillings.edu/
mailto:jburns@msubillings.edu




http://www.rocky.edu/
mailto:vailb@rocky.edu


















ITEM 10 
 

REVIEW OF ARM TITLE 10, CHAPTER 57 
 

Dennis Parman 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 





 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE (Item 11) 
Bernie Olson 

 
ITEM 11 

 
ACCREDITATION PROCESS UPDATE ON 

ANNUAL DATA COLLECTION 
 

Teri Wing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE (Item 12) 
Paul Andersen 

 
ITEM 12 

 
PREPARATIONS FOR THE SMARTER 

BALANCED ASSESSMENT 
 

Dennis Parman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





INFORMATION 
 
 

   EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
Sharon Carroll (Item 13) 

 
ITEM 13 

 
BUS DRIVER QUALIFICATIONS RULE 

AMENDMENT 
 

Ann Gilkey 
 

 
  







































ACTION 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE  
(Items 14-15) 
Lila Taylor 

 
ITEM 14 

 
ACTION TO EXTEND THE 

ADMINISTRATIVE RULES OF MONTANA 
CHAPTER 58 PROFESSIONAL EDUCATOR 
PREPARATION PROGRAM STANDARDS 

FROM JANUARY 31, 2014 TO JANUARY 31, 
2015 

 
Dr. Linda Peterson 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Montana	Office	of	Public	Instruction	▪	Denise	Juneau,	Superintendent	▪	December	2013	
 

TIMELINE - PROPOSED  
Administrative Rules of Montana Chapter 58 

Professional Educator Preparation Program Standards  
December 2013 

 


 Proposed rule change introduction to BPE ............................. January 2014 
 

 Draft rule change to BPE .............................................................. May 2014 

 

 Proposed notice to BPE ............................................................... July 2014 

 

 Hearing date ...................................................................... September 2014 

 

 Final Public Input deadline ................................................ September 2014 

 

 Adoption Notice to BPE  ................................................................ Fall 2014 

 

 Final rule changes to SOS for notice in MAR  ............................... Fall 2014 
 

 MAR publication out ...................................................................... Fall 2014 

 

 Effective Date of Rules .................................................................. Fall 2014 

 



ITEM 15 
 

ACTION ON EDUCATOR LICENSE 
APPLICATION DENIAL, BPE CASE #2013-04 

 
Katherine Orr 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





BPE PRESENTATION 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
DATE: JANUARY  2014 

 

PRESENTATION: Critical Quality Educator Shortage Areas 

 

PRESENTER: Madalyn Quinlan 

 Chief of Staff 

 Office of Public Instruction 

 

OVERVIEW: Section 20-4-501 through 506, MCA provides for a quality educator loan 

assistance program. This presentation will include information about the 

responsibilities of the Board of Public Education and the Office of Public 

Instruction in the implementation of this program. The Office of Public Instruction 

will report and recommend for board adoption a listing of specific schools and 

specific quality educator licensure and endorsement areas impacted by critical 

quality educator shortage areas. 

 

REQUESTED DECISION(S): Adoption of the Critical Quality Educator Shortage Areas report. The report will 

then be used to establish eligibility for the quality educator loan assistance 

program in the spring of 2014. 

 

OUTLYING ISSUE(S): None 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): Action - Adoption of the report 



 
 
 
 

Critical Quality Educator Shortages 
 

Identification of Schools and Licensure and Endorsement Areas 
Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 

for the 2013-14 school year 

 
 
 
 

Report to the Board of Public Education 
December 2013 

 
 
 

Prepared by  
Madalyn Quinlan, Chief of Staff 

Linda Atwood, Operations Research Analyst 
Montana Office of Public Instruction 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 1 

Background 
The Quality Educator Loan Assistance Program is administered by the Board of 
Regents through the Office of the Commissioner of Higher Education.  The program 
provides for the direct repayment of educational loans of eligible quality educators for up 
to 4 years. The total annual loan repayment assistance may not exceed $3,000.  
 
Educational loans are loans made by a federal loan program, excluding federal Parents 
Loans for Undergraduate Students (PLUS) loans. 
 
A quality educator is defined as a full-time equivalent educator who holds a valid 
educator license or is a licensed professional providing services to students in a school 
district, an education cooperative, the Montana School for the Deaf and Blind, the 
Montana Youth Challenge Program or a state youth correctional facility.1 
 
In FY 2013, 192 teachers received quality educator loan repayment assistance totaling 
$570,261. The appropriation for FY 2014 is $738,000. The table below shows the 
number of teachers and the total amount of loan repayment assistance distributed since 
FY 2010. 
 
Fiscal Year  Appropriation Number of Recipients Total Loan Assistance 

Provided 
2010  163 $471,753 
2011  141 $417,000 
2012  166 $494,890 
2013  192 $570,261 
2014 $738,000 246 (est.)  
 
 
Critical Quality Educator Shortages 
Section 20-4-503, MCA directs the Board of Public Education, in consultation with the 
Office of Public Instruction , to identify: 
 

(a) specific schools that are impacted by critical quality educator shortages; and 
 
(b) within the schools identified in (a), the specific quality educator licensure or 

endorsement areas that are impacted by critical quality educator shortages. 
 
Quality educators working in schools that are identified as impacted schools and 
teaching in licensure or endorsement areas that are impacted by critical quality educator 
shortages are eligible for loan repayment assistance. 
 
The Board of Public Education is required to publish an annual report listing the schools 
and the licensure or endorsement areas identified as impacted by critical quality 
educator shortages, explaining the reasons that specific schools and licensure or 

                                                 
1 The complete definition of a Quality Educator is in 20-4-501(4), MCA. 



 

Page 2 

endorsement areas have been identified, and providing information regarding any 
success in retention. 
 
 
Methodology for Identifying Critical Quality Educator Shortages 
The methodology used by the OPI for identifying critical quality educator shortages 
includes a two-step process. The first step is to identify the schools that are impacted by 
critical shortages. The second step is to identify specific licensure and endorsement 
areas. 
 
 
Identification of Impacted Schools 
The OPI has developed a rubric for scoring the needs of schools based on three 
factors: rural isolation, economic disadvantage, and low student achievement.  These 
three factors are weighted to set a threshold for identifying "impacted schools."   
  
To measure rural isolation, economic disadvantage, and low student achievement, the 
OPI developed a 24 point rubric based on locale code, the percentage of students 
eligible for free and reduced price meals, and the improvement status of schools under 
No Child Left Behind.  Schools are listed as impacted schools if they are more rural, 
have a higher percentage of economically disadvantaged students, and/or have greater 
challenges in closing the achievement gap. 
 
Locale codes are used by the National Center for Education Statistics and the U S  
Census Bureau to indicate the urban-rural nature of a school based upon population 
density and geographic location.  The codes range from 11 to 43 based on population 
density and proximity to an urbanized area. (Appendix A provides an explanation of 
locale codes.)  For this report, a school was assigned 4 "rural isolation" points if it has a 
locale code of 42-Rural, Distant and 8 points if it has a locale code of 43-Rural, Remote.  
All other Montana schools have a locale code indicating that the school is located in a 
small city, suburb, town or rural fringe; these schools were assigned zero points for rural 
isolation.2 
 
The indicator of economic disadvantage that was chosen for this report is the number of 
Free/Reduced Price Participants as a percentage of total school enrollment. While this 
indicator has its flaws in that actual participation may fall short of eligibility, especially in 
the high schools grades, the OPI considers it to be the best and most current indicator 
of economic disadvantage among the school population.  Schools were given a score of 
0 8 "economic disadvantage" points depending on the percentage of students 
participating in free/reduced price meals.  
 

                                                 
2 For 2012-13, there are 22 schools for which OPI assigned the locale code.  Seventeen of these schools were opened 
or re-opened recently and do not have a current locale code.  The remaining 5 schools use a mailing address in a 
larger community.  Given that locale codes are assigned by the US Department of Education based on zip code, 
these districts are more isolated than is indicated by the zip code.  OPI assigned the most rural locale codes to these 
schools for the purpose of this analysis.   



 

Page 3 

The indicator of student achievement that was chosen for this report is the improvement 
status of schools under No Child Left Behind.  Schools were given a score of 0 8 
"improvement status" points depending on whether the school was identified as in need 
of improvement for 2012-13.  If a school was not identified as in need of improvement, it 
is assigned zero improvement status points.  If the school was identified as in need of 
improvement, the improvement status points increase from 1 point for a school in its first 
year of being identified for improvement to 8 points for a school in restructuring for four 
or more years. 
  
Table 1 shows the rubric that was used to assign points to each school based on 
indicators of rural isolation, economic disadvantage, and improvement status. 
 
Table 1.  Scoring Rubric for Determining Impacted Schools 
Scoring Rubric Score 
Rural Isolation   
Locale Code 13 - Small City 0 
Locale Code 22 - Suburb, Mid-Size 0 
Locale Code 23 - Suburb, Small 0 
Locale Code 31 - Town, Fringe 0 
Locale Code 33 - Town, Remote 0 
Locale Code 41 - Rural, Fringe 0 
Locale Code 42 - Rural, Distant 4 
Locale Code 43 - Rural, Remote 8 
    
Economic Disadvantage   
Free/Reduced % >=10% 1 
Free/Reduced % >=20% 2 
Free/Reduced % >=30% 3 
Free/Reduced % >=40% 4 
Free/Reduced % >=50% 5 
Free/Reduced % >=60% 6 
Free/Reduced % >=70% 7 
Free/Reduced % >=80% 8 
    
Improvement Status   
School Improvement Year 1 1 
School Improvement Year 2 2 
School Improvement Year 3 or more 3 
Corrective Year 1 4 
Restructuring Year 1 5 
Restructuring Year 2 6 
Restructuring Year 3 7 
Restructuring Year 4 or more 8 

 
Any school that has a total score of 8 points or more is listed as an impacted school.  
There are 592 schools on this list, of which 287 are elementary schools,166 are middle 
schools or grade 7/8 schools, and 139 are high schools. 
 



 

Page 4 

The Montana School for the Deaf and Blind, the Department of Corrections schools 
(Pine Hills and Riverside), the Montana Youth Challenge Program, and the state's 21 
special education cooperatives were automatically added to the list of impacted schools.  
These entities are likely to employ a significant number of special education teachers (a 
category that is included in the specific quality educator endorsement areas). 
 
Identification of specific quality educator licensure or endorsement areas 
Each fall, schools report to the Office of Public Instruction regarding the challenges 
facing schools in filling vacancies for teachers, specialists, administrators and licensed 
professionals.  These data are submitted on the District Personnel Recruitment Report.  
The OPI relied on information submitted by schools through this report to determine the 
critical shortage areas for licensure and endorsement. 
 
The District Personnel Recruitment Report provides an indication of the difficulty school 
districts face in recruiting licensed teachers with necessary endorsements. This report is 
completed annually by school districts as part of the Annual Data Collection submitted 
to the Office of Public Instruction.  In this report, school administrators provide an 
indication of the difficulty they experience in hiring regular education teachers, special 
education teachers, school administrators, specialists, paraprofessionals, and other 
support staff.  The statewide summary of the District Personnel Recruitment report for 
2012-13 is shown in Appendix B.  
 
The OPI used a weighted score for evaluating the data from the District Personnel 
Recruitment Report, which involved ranking hiring difficulty based on the degree of 
difficulty and the number of position vacancies.  The degree of hiring difficulty was 
computed by adding the percentage of positions that were difficult to fill with those that 
districts were unable to fill.  This combined percentage was then multiplied by the 
number of position openings.  For example, school districts reported that of the 43 FTE 
vacancies for music teachers statewide, 57 percent of the positions were difficult or 
very hard to fill.  This resulted in a score of 25 points for music openings. 
 
Some education fields are relatively easy to fill, but because of the large number of 
openings, the education field receives a high score using the method described above.  
The most obvious example of this is elementary education. With 385 FTE reported 
openings in 2012-13 and 7percent of the positions reported as difficult or very hard to 
fill, the elementary education field receives a weighting of 27. 
 
To prevent an education field from being placed on the critical shortage list based on 
volume or difficulty alone, two additional criteria were added.  For an education field to 
be included on the list of academic areas impacted by critical quality educator 
shortages, the education field must meet two conditions: 

• At least 10 FTE  openings were reported statewide; 
• At least 25 percent of the positions were reported as difficult or very hard to fill. 

 
Based upon the above criteria, the critical quality educator shortage areas for 2012-13 
were Special Education, Career and Technical Education, Mathematics, Music, English, 



 

Page 5 

Science, Speech-Language Pathologist, World Languages, Social Studies, Library, and 
Art. 
 
In 2012-13, Montana school districts reported 1,169 vacancies for all education fields 
and reported a total of 463 vacancies in these 11 areas. 
 
Table 2.  Education Fields Impacted by Critical Shortages in 2012-2013 
 
 
 
Rank 

 
 
 
Education Field 

 
 
Total 
Vacancies3 

Percent 
Difficult or 
Very Hard 
to Fill 

 
 
Weighted 
Score 

 
 
Total FTE 
Employed4  

1 Special Education 82 61% 50 894 
2 Career and Technical 

Education 
66 67% 44 487 

3 Mathematics 58 46% 27 615 
4 Music 43 57% 25 362 
5 English 81 26% 21 862 
6 Science 34 46% 16 473 
7 Speech-Language 

Pathologist 
11 96% 11 238 

8 World Languages 21 45% 10 154 
9 Social Studies 31 27% 8 441 
10 Library 20 32% 6 365 
11 Art 16 25% 4 207 
 
The District Personnel Recruitment Report aligns with the K-12 educator licensure areas 
and the subject areas that districts are likely to post in their job openings.  It should be 
noted that the responses from districts are subjective and may not always be complete.  
 
If a licensed educator has a teaching assignment in one of the academic shortage areas 
listed in Table 2 and the educator teaches in an impacted school, the educator has met 
the initial eligibility criteria for the loan forgiveness program. (The teacher must also 
have an outstanding educational loan made by a federal loan program, excluding 
federal Parents Loans for Undergraduate Students (PLUS) loans.) 
 
Eligibility for elementary teachers 
In March 2013, the Board of Public Education adopted a recommendation from the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction to expand eligibility to elementary teachers in rural, 
high poverty areas. For 2013-14, elementary teachers in a special education 
cooperative or an impacted school that has a total score of 15 or higher are also eligible 
for the loan forgiveness program. There are 97 elementary and middle schools that 
meet the criteria. 
                                                 
3 Total vacancies as reported by public school districts, state-funded schools, and special education cooperatives on 
the District Personnel Recruitment Report for the 2012-13 Annual Data Collection 
4 Total FTE Employed as reported by public school districts, state-funded schools and special education 
cooperatives on the Personnel Assignment report for the 2012-13 Annual Data Collection 



 

Page 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

List of Impacted Schools



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 1 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
01 Beaverhead 0000 0000 Montana Youth Challenge MYC NA NA NA 11
01 Beaverhead 0003 0004 Grant School EL 8 7 0 15
01 Beaverhead 0007 0009 Wise River School EL 8 0 0 8
01 Beaverhead 0009 1667 Lima 7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
01 Beaverhead 0009 0010 Lima High School HS 8 6 0 14
01 Beaverhead 0009 0011 Lima School EL 8 7 0 15
01 Beaverhead 0012 0015 Polaris School EL 8 0 0 8
01 Beaverhead 0014 0017 Jackson School EL 8 0 0 8
01 Beaverhead 0015 0018 Reichle School EL 8 0 0 8
02 Big Horn 0020 0026 Spring Creek School EL 8 0 0 8
02 Big Horn 0021 1668 Pryor 7-8 MG 4 8 8 20
02 Big Horn 0021 0027 Pryor Elem School EL 4 8 8 20
02 Big Horn 1214 1553 Plenty Coups High School HS 4 8 8 20
02 Big Horn 0023 0033 Crow Agency School EL 4 6 8 18
02 Big Horn 0023 1315 Fort Smith School EL 8 7 1 16
02 Big Horn 0023 0032 Hardin Intermediate EL 0 8 8 16
02 Big Horn 0023 0036 Hardin Middle School MG 0 8 8 16
02 Big Horn 0023 0031 Hardin Primary EL 0 5 8 13
02 Big Horn 1189 0037 Hardin High School HS 0 8 8 16
02 Big Horn 0025 1669 Lodge Grass 7-8 MG 8 8 8 24
02 Big Horn 0025 0039 Lodge Grass School EL 8 8 8 24
02 Big Horn 1190 0040 Lodge Grass High School HS 8 8 8 24
02 Big Horn 0026 1583 Wyola 7-8 MG 8 8 5 21
02 Big Horn 0026 0041 Wyola School EL 8 8 8 24
03 Blaine 0028 1798 Chinook 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
03 Blaine 0028 1828 Hartland Elementary School EL 8 8 0 16
03 Blaine 0028 0046 Meadowlark School EL 8 3 2 13
03 Blaine 0029 0047 Chinook High School HS 8 2 0 10
03 Blaine 0030 1643 Harlem 7-8 MG 8 8 8 24
03 Blaine 0030 0048 Harlem Elementary School EL 8 8 0 16
03 Blaine 0031 0049 Harlem High School HS 8 8 6 22
03 Blaine 0032 1401 Cleveland School EL 8 0 0 8
03 Blaine 0034 0056 Zurich School EL 8 4 0 12
03 Blaine 0044 1670 Turner 7-8 MG 8 6 0 14
03 Blaine 0044 0069 Turner School EL 8 3 0 11



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 2 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
03 Blaine 0045 0070 Turner High School HS 8 6 0 14
03 Blaine 1213 1659 Hays-Lodge Pole 7-8 MG 8 8 8 24
03 Blaine 1213 1551 Hays-Lodge Pole High Sch HS 8 8 8 24
03 Blaine 1213 0072 Lodge Pole School EL 8 8 0 16
03 Blaine 0048 0074 Bear Paw School EL 8 0 0 8
03 Blaine 1216 1565 North Harlem Elementary EL 8 0 0 8
03 Blaine 9689 Bear Paw Cooperative SECOOP NA NA NA 11
04 Broadwater 0055 0081 Broadwater High School HS 8 3 0 11
04 Broadwater 0055 0076 Cecelia Hazelton School EL 8 4 0 12
04 Broadwater 0055 1671 Townsend 7-8 MG 8 4 1 13
05 Carbon 0056 1542 Mountain View School EL 8 4 0 12
05 Carbon 0056 1637 Roosevelt Junior High MG 8 3 0 11
05 Carbon 0057 0084 Red Lodge High School HS 8 2 2 12
05 Carbon 0059 1672 Bridger 7-8 MG 8 4 0 12
05 Carbon 0059 0085 Bridger Elementary School EL 8 4 0 12
05 Carbon 0059 0086 Bridger High School HS 8 5 0 13
05 Carbon 0060 1635 Joliet 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
05 Carbon 0060 0087 Joliet School EL 8 3 0 11
05 Carbon 0061 0088 Joliet High School HS 8 2 0 10
05 Carbon 0069 1673 Roberts 7-8 MG 8 1 0 9
05 Carbon 0069 0096 Roberts High School HS 8 2 0 10
05 Carbon 0069 0095 Roberts School EL 8 2 0 10
05 Carbon 0072 1674 Fromberg 7-8 MG 8 4 0 12
05 Carbon 0072 0099 Fromberg High School HS 8 3 0 11
05 Carbon 0072 0098 Fromberg School EL 8 4 1 13
05 Carbon 0076 1675 Belfry 7-8 MG 8 8 1 17
05 Carbon 0076 0103 Belfry High School HS 8 8 0 16
05 Carbon 0076 0102 Belfry School EL 8 8 0 16
05 Carbon 1231 0091 Luther School EL 8 2 0 10
06 Carter 0078 0105 Hammond School EL 8 0 0 8
06 Carter 0078 0131 Hawks Home School EL 8 0 0 8
06 Carter 0096 0132 Alzada School EL 8 0 1 9
06 Carter 0087 1676 Ekalaka 7-8 MG 8 6 0 14
06 Carter 0087 0118 Ekalaka Elementary School EL 8 4 0 12
06 Carter 0097 0133 Carter County High School HS 8 2 0 10



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 3 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
07 Cascade 0098 1633 East Middle School MG 0 5 8 13
07 Cascade 0098 0143 Longfellow School EL 0 8 6 14
07 Cascade 0098 0154 Whittier School EL 0 8 5 13
07 Cascade 0099 0134 Great Falls High School HS 0 4 8 12
07 Cascade 0101 1661 Cascade 7-8 MG 8 4 0 12
07 Cascade 0101 0158 Cascade School EL 8 3 0 11
07 Cascade 0102 0157 Cascade High School HS 8 2 0 10
07 Cascade 0104 1677 Centerville 7-8 MG 4 4 0 8
07 Cascade 0104 0160 Centerville School EL 4 5 0 9
07 Cascade 0112 1678 Belt 7-8 MG 4 4 0 8
07 Cascade 0112 0168 Belt School EL 4 4 0 8
07 Cascade 0127 1679 Vaughn 7-8 MG 4 5 0 9
07 Cascade 0127 0183 Vaughn School EL 4 6 0 10
07 Cascade 0131 1655 Fairhaven Colony EL 4 8 0 12
07 Cascade 0131 1680 Ulm 7-8 MG 4 5 0 9
07 Cascade 0118 0174 Simms High School HS 8 5 0 13
07 Cascade 1225 1657 Cascade Colony School EL 8 0 0 8
07 Cascade 1225 0173 Fort Shaw Elem School EL 8 4 0 12
07 Cascade 1225 1538 Sun River Middle School MG 4 4 0 8
07 Cascade 9258 9368 MT Sch for Deaf & Blind El EL NA NA NA 11
07 Cascade 9258 9371 MT Sch for Deaf & Blind HS HS NA NA NA 11
07 Cascade 9699 North Central Learn Res Ctr SECOOP NA NA NA 11
08 Chouteau 0133 0191 Fort Benton 7-8 MG 8 4 0 12
08 Chouteau 0133 0190 Fort Benton School EL 8 2 0 10
08 Chouteau 0134 0192 Fort Benton High School HS 8 2 0 10
08 Chouteau 0137 1607 Big Sandy 7-8 MG 8 4 0 12
08 Chouteau 0137 0197 F E Miley School EL 8 6 0 14
08 Chouteau 0138 0195 Big Sandy High School HS 8 4 0 12
08 Chouteau 0146 0205 Highwood High School HS 8 3 0 11
08 Chouteau 0146 1681 Highwood Middle School MG 8 1 0 9
08 Chouteau 0146 0204 Highwood School EL 8 1 0 9
08 Chouteau 0154 1682 Geraldine 7-8 MG 8 7 1 16
08 Chouteau 0154 0214 Geraldine High School HS 8 6 0 14
08 Chouteau 0154 0213 Geraldine School EL 8 6 0 14
08 Chouteau 0161 0223 Knees School EL 8 0 0 8



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 4 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
08 Chouteau 0171 0233 Benton Lake School EL 8 0 0 8
08 Chouteau 9871 Chouteau Co Joint Service SECOOP NA NA NA 11
09 Custer 0172 0234 Garfield School EL 0 6 4 10
09 Custer 0172 0238 Washington 7-8 MG 0 4 6 10
09 Custer 0177 0246 Riverview School EL 8 0 0 8
09 Custer 0179 0248 Spring Creek School EL 8 0 0 8
09 Custer 0187 0259 Kinsey School EL 8 1 0 9
09 Custer 9692 Big Country Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
09 Custer 9034 9935 Pine Hills Youth Corr Facil El EL NA NA NA 11
09 Custer 9034 9415 Pine Hills Youth Corr Facil HS HS NA NA NA 11
10 Daniels 0194 1650 Scobey 7-8 MG 8 1 0 9
10 Daniels 0194 0268 Scobey High School HS 8 1 0 9
10 Daniels 0194 0267 Scobey School EL 8 1 0 9
11 Dawson 0206 1685 Washington Middle School MG 0 3 6 9
11 Dawson 0215 0294 Bloomfield School EL 8 0 0 8
11 Dawson 0216 0295 Lindsay School EL 8 0 0 8
11 Dawson 0227 1686 Richey 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
11 Dawson 0227 0310 Richey School EL 8 1 0 9
11 Dawson 0228 0311 Richey High School HS 8 2 0 10
12 Deer Lodge 0237 0326 Anaconda High School HS 0 4 7 11
13 Fallon 0244 0332 Baker 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
13 Fallon 0244 0335 Baker High School HS 8 1 0 9
13 Fallon 0244 0333 Lincoln School EL 8 1 0 9
13 Fallon 0244 1466 Longfellow School EL 8 2 0 10
13 Fallon 0256 1687 Plevna 7-8 MG 8 0 0 8
13 Fallon 0256 0352 Plevna High School HS 8 1 0 9
13 Fallon 0256 0351 Plevna School EL 8 1 0 9
14 Fergus 0258 0357 Garfield School EL 0 5 4 9
14 Fergus 0258 0355 Highland Park School EL 0 4 4 8
14 Fergus 0264 0363 Deerfield School EL 4 8 0 12
14 Fergus 0268 1795 Grass Range 7-8 MG 8 7 0 15
14 Fergus 0268 0367 Grass Range School EL 8 6 0 14
14 Fergus 0269 0368 Grass Range High School HS 8 7 0 15
14 Fergus 0272 0371 King Colony School EL 0 8 0 8
14 Fergus 0273 1688 Moore 7-8 MG 8 4 0 12



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 5 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
14 Fergus 0273 0372 Moore School EL 8 4 0 12
14 Fergus 0274 0373 Moore High School HS 8 3 0 11
14 Fergus 0280 1689 Roy 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
14 Fergus 0280 0379 Roy High School HS 8 2 0 10
14 Fergus 0280 0378 Roy School EL 8 4 0 12
14 Fergus 0281 1690 Denton 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
14 Fergus 0281 0380 Denton School EL 8 3 0 11
14 Fergus 0282 0381 Denton High School HS 8 1 0 9
14 Fergus 0288 0389 Spring Creek Colony Schl EL 0 8 0 8
14 Fergus 0291 1691 Winifred 7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
14 Fergus 0291 0392 Winifred High School HS 8 4 0 12
14 Fergus 0291 0391 Winifred School EL 8 5 0 13
14 Fergus 1218 1580 Ayers School EL 8 8 0 16
14 Fergus 9691 Central MT Learn Res Ctr SECOOP NA NA NA 11
15 Flathead 0307 1693 Deer Park 7-8 MG 4 4 0 8
15 Flathead 0309 1694 Swan River 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
15 Flathead 0309 0411 Swan River School EL 8 4 0 12
15 Flathead 0311 0462 Flathead High School HS 0 3 7 10
15 Flathead 0312 0419 Columbia Falls Jr HS MG 0 5 5 10
15 Flathead 0312 0418 Glacier Gateway Elem EL 0 6 2 8
15 Flathead 0313 0425 Columbia Falls High Schl HS 0 4 5 9
15 Flathead 0323 1818 Kila 7-8 MG 4 6 0 10
15 Flathead 0323 0435 Kila School EL 4 5 4 13
15 Flathead 0324 0444 Smith Valley 7-8 MG 4 6 0 10
15 Flathead 0324 0436 Smith Valley Primary Schl EL 4 6 0 10
15 Flathead 0325 0437 Pleasant Valley School EL 8 0 0 8
15 Flathead 0327 0439 Lakeside Elementary School EL 4 5 0 9
15 Flathead 0327 1799 Somers Middle School MG 4 4 0 8
15 Flathead 0330 1660 Bigfork 7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
15 Flathead 0330 0442 Bigfork Elementary EL 8 4 0 12
15 Flathead 0331 0443 Bigfork High School HS 8 4 0 12
15 Flathead 0339 0453 East Evergreen School EL 0 7 2 9
15 Flathead 0341 1697 Marion 7-8 MG 8 4 0 12
15 Flathead 0341 0455 Marion School EL 8 6 0 14
15 Flathead 0342 1698 Bissell 7-8 MG 4 6 0 10



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 6 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
15 Flathead 0342 0457 Bissell School EL 4 5 0 9
15 Flathead 1223 1651 West Glacier School EL 8 2 0 10
15 Flathead 9695 Flathead County Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
16 Gallatin 0354 1700 Willow Creek 7-8 MG 8 8 0 16
16 Gallatin 0354 0476 Willow Creek School EL 8 7 0 15
16 Gallatin 0355 0477 Willow Creek High School HS 8 3 0 11
16 Gallatin 0360 1658 Three Forks 7-8 MG 8 3 2 13
16 Gallatin 0360 0482 Three Forks Elem School EL 8 3 1 12
16 Gallatin 0361 0483 Three Forks High School HS 8 2 0 10
16 Gallatin 0362 0484 Pass Creek School EL 8 0 0 8
16 Gallatin 0368 1575 Belgrade Middle School MG 0 4 4 8
16 Gallatin 0374 1704 West Yellowstone 7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
16 Gallatin 0374 0496 West Yellowstone HS HS 8 3 0 11
16 Gallatin 0374 0495 West Yellowstone School EL 8 4 0 12
16 Gallatin 1239 1837 Lone Peak High School HS 8 0 0 8
16 Gallatin 1239 1817 Ophir 7-8 MG 8 0 0 8
16 Gallatin 1239 0497 Ophir Elementary School EL 8 1 0 9
16 Gallatin 9696 Gallatin/Madison Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
17 Garfield 0377 1705 Jordan 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
17 Garfield 0377 0500 Jordan Elementary School EL 8 3 0 11
17 Garfield 0378 0534 Garfield Co Dist HS HS 8 3 0 11
17 Garfield 0385 0516 Pine Grove School EL 8 0 0 8
17 Garfield 0386 0518 Kester School EL 8 0 0 8
17 Garfield 0387 0520 Cohagen School EL 8 0 0 8
17 Garfield 0392 0527 Sand Springs School EL 8 0 0 8
17 Garfield 0394 0531 Ross School EL 8 6 0 14
18 Glacier 0400 0537 Babb School EL 8 8 4 20
18 Glacier 0400 1840 Browning Elementary EL 4 8 4 16
18 Glacier 0400 1613 Browning Middle School MG 4 8 8 20
18 Glacier 0400 0538 K W Bergan School EL 0 8 8 16
18 Glacier 0400 0539 Napi School EL 4 8 8 20
18 Glacier 0400 1485 Vina Chattin School EL 4 8 8 20
18 Glacier 0401 0543 Browning High School HS 0 8 8 16
18 Glacier 0402 0545 Anna Jeffries Elementary EL 0 5 6 11
18 Glacier 0402 1810 Glacier Elementary School EL 0 8 0 8



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 7 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
18 Glacier 0402 1844 Horizon Elementary EL 0 8 0 8
18 Glacier 0402 1842 Zenith Elementary EL 0 8 0 8
18 Glacier 0404 0548 East Glacier Park School EL 8 6 0 14
19 Golden Valley 0407 1706 Ryegate 7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
19 Golden Valley 0407 0551 Ryegate High School HS 8 5 0 13
19 Golden Valley 0407 0550 Ryegate School EL 8 8 0 16
19 Golden Valley 0411 1707 Lavina 7-8 MG 8 7 0 15
19 Golden Valley 0411 0556 Lavina High School HS 8 3 0 11
19 Golden Valley 0411 0555 Lavina School EL 8 4 0 12
20 Granite 0416 0565 Granite High School HS 8 4 0 12
20 Granite 0416 1708 Philipsburg 7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
20 Granite 0416 0560 Philipsburg School EL 8 4 0 12
20 Granite 0418 0562 Hall School EL 8 0 0 8
20 Granite 0419 1709 Drummond 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
20 Granite 0419 0563 Drummond School EL 8 5 0 13
20 Granite 0420 0564 Drummond High School HS 8 3 0 11
21 Hill 0425 1710 Box Elder 7-8 MG 8 8 2 18
21 Hill 0425 0570 Box Elder School EL 8 8 7 23
21 Hill 0426 0571 Box Elder High School HS 8 8 5 21
21 Hill 0427 1451 Havre Middle School MG 0 4 7 11
21 Hill 0427 0574 Highland Park School EL 0 5 6 11
21 Hill 0427 0577 Lincoln-McKinley School EL 0 5 6 11
21 Hill 0427 0572 Sunnyside School EL 0 5 7 12
21 Hill 0428 1450 Havre High School HS 0 3 6 9
21 Hill 0445 1475 Cottonwood School EL 8 0 0 8
21 Hill 1207 1711 Rocky Boy 7-8 MG 8 8 8 24
21 Hill 1207 0579 Rocky Boy School EL 8 8 8 24
21 Hill 1229 1807 Rocky Boy High School HS 8 8 8 24
21 Hill 1217 1578 Gildford Colony School EL 8 8 0 16
21 Hill 1233 0588 North Star 7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
21 Hill 1233 1536 North Star School EL 8 4 0 12
21 Hill 1234 0591 North Star High School HS 8 3 0 11
22 Jefferson 0453 1570 Whitehall 7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
22 Jefferson 0453 0607 Whitehall Elementary EL 8 5 4 17
22 Jefferson 0454 0608 Whitehall High School HS 8 4 0 12



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 8 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
22 Jefferson 0455 0609 Basin School EL 8 0 0 8
22 Jefferson 0456 1714 Boulder 7-8 MG 8 6 0 14
22 Jefferson 0456 0610 Boulder Elementary School EL 8 6 0 14
22 Jefferson 0458 0612 Cardwell School EL 8 0 0 8
22 Jefferson 0457 0611 Jefferson High School HS 8 3 6 17
22 Jefferson 9034 9973 Riverside Youth Corr Facil El EL NA NA NA 11
22 Jefferson 9034 9974 Riverside Youth Corr Facil HS HS NA NA NA 11
23 Judith Basin 0464 1716 Stanford 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
23 Judith Basin 0464 0618 Stanford High School HS 8 4 0 12
23 Judith Basin 0464 0617 Stanford School EL 8 4 0 12
23 Judith Basin 0469 1717 Hobson 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
23 Judith Basin 0469 0623 Hobson High School HS 8 2 0 10
23 Judith Basin 0469 0622 Hobson School EL 8 2 0 10
23 Judith Basin 0472 1718 Geyser 7-8 MG 8 6 0 14
23 Judith Basin 0472 0626 Geyser School EL 8 6 0 14
23 Judith Basin 0472 1617 Surprise Creek School EL 8 8 0 16
23 Judith Basin 0473 0627 Geyser High School HS 8 7 0 15
24 Lake 0474 1640 Arlee 7-8 MG 4 6 5 15
24 Lake 0474 0628 Arlee Elementary EL 4 7 6 17
24 Lake 0475 0629 Arlee High School HS 4 6 2 12
24 Lake 0477 0632 Cherry Valley School EL 0 6 5 11
24 Lake 0477 1495 Linderman School EL 0 5 5 10
24 Lake 0478 0633 Polson High School HS 0 3 8 11
24 Lake 0481 0642 St Ignatius Elementary School EL 8 8 2 18
24 Lake 0481 0643 St Ignatius High School HS 8 5 0 13
24 Lake 0481 1719 St Ignatius Middle School MG 8 7 4 19
24 Lake 0486 0649 Salmon Prairie School EL 8 0 0 8
24 Lake 1199 0639 K William Harvey Elem EL 8 7 5 20
24 Lake 1199 0638 Pablo Elementary EL 4 8 5 17
24 Lake 1199 1519 Ronan Middle School MG 8 6 5 19
24 Lake 1200 0640 Ronan High School HS 8 4 6 18
24 Lake 1205 1602 Charlo 7-8 MG 8 6 0 14
24 Lake 1205 0635 Charlo Elementary EL 8 5 0 13
24 Lake 1206 0636 Charlo High School HS 8 4 0 12
24 Lake 1211 0646 Dayton School EL 8 0 0 8



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 9 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
25 Lewis & Clark 0487 0657 Bryant School EL 0 8 4 12
25 Lewis & Clark 0487 0654 Central School EL 0 4 5 9
25 Lewis & Clark 0487 1614 Helena Middle School MG 0 4 8 12
25 Lewis & Clark 0487 1477 Smith School EL 0 4 4 8
25 Lewis & Clark 0487 0663 Warren School EL 8 4 2 14
25 Lewis & Clark 0488 0661 Helena High School HS 0 2 8 10
25 Lewis & Clark 0491 0664 Trinity School EL 8 0 0 8
25 Lewis & Clark 0495 0668 Wolf Creek School EL 8 6 0 14
25 Lewis & Clark 0498 0671 Auchard Creek School EL 0 8 0 8
25 Lewis & Clark 1221 1721 Lincoln 7-8 MG 8 8 0 16
25 Lewis & Clark 1221 0675 Lincoln Elementary School EL 8 5 0 13
25 Lewis & Clark 1221 1610 Lincoln High School HS 8 5 0 13
25 Lewis & Clark 0502 1722 Augusta 7-8 MG 8 6 0 14
25 Lewis & Clark 0502 0676 Augusta Elementary School EL 8 6 0 14
25 Lewis & Clark 0503 0677 Augusta High School HS 8 5 0 13
25 Lewis & Clark 9697 Prickly Pear Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
26 Liberty 1224 1648 Liberty Elementary School EL 8 0 0 8
26 Liberty 1236 1723 Chester-Joplin-Inverness 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
26 Liberty 1236 0684 Chester-Joplin-Inverness Schl EL 8 3 0 11
26 Liberty 1236 1829 Riverview Elementary EL 8 8 0 16
26 Liberty 1236 1830 Sage Creek Elementary EL 8 7 0 15
26 Liberty 1237 0687 Chester-Joplin-Inverness HS HS 8 2 0 10
27 Lincoln 0519 1663 Troy 7-8 MG 8 5 5 18
27 Lincoln 0519 0696 W F Morrison School EL 8 6 4 18
27 Lincoln 0520 0697 Troy High School HS 8 5 4 17
27 Lincoln 0522 0705 Libby High School HS 0 4 5 9
27 Lincoln 0522 0704 Libby Middle School MG 0 5 5 10
27 Lincoln 0527 0710 Eureka Elementary School EL 8 6 0 14
27 Lincoln 0527 1724 Eureka Middle School 5-8 MG 8 6 0 14
27 Lincoln 0528 0711 Lincoln Co High School HS 8 6 6 20
27 Lincoln 0529 1841 Fortine 7-8 MG 8 7 0 15
27 Lincoln 0529 0712 Fortine School EL 8 6 0 14
27 Lincoln 0530 0713 McCormick School EL 8 0 0 8
27 Lincoln 0533 0716 Yaak School EL 8 0 0 8
27 Lincoln 0534 0717 Trego School EL 8 6 0 14



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 10 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
28 Madison 0536 0719 Alder School EL 8 4 0 12
28 Madison 0537 1725 Sheridan 7-8 MG 8 4 0 12
28 Madison 0537 0721 Sheridan Elementary Schl EL 8 3 0 11
28 Madison 0538 0722 Sheridan High School HS 8 2 0 10
28 Madison 0540 1726 Twin Bridges 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
28 Madison 0540 0724 Twin Bridges High School HS 8 3 0 11
28 Madison 0540 0723 Twin Bridges School EL 8 4 0 12
28 Madison 0543 1727 Harrison 7-8 MG 8 4 0 12
28 Madison 0543 0727 Harrison High School HS 8 4 0 12
28 Madison 0543 0726 Harrison School EL 8 5 0 13
28 Madison 0546 1728 Ennis 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
28 Madison 0546 0731 Ennis High School HS 8 3 0 11
28 Madison 0546 0729 Ennis School EL 8 2 0 10
29 McCone 0547 1406 Bo Peep School EL 8 2 0 10
29 McCone 0547 1800 Redwater 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
29 McCone 0547 0732 Redwater School EL 8 3 0 11
29 McCone 0548 0733 Circle High School HS 8 2 0 10
29 McCone 0566 1836 Prairie Elk Colony School EL 8 0 0 8
29 McCone 0566 0755 Vida School EL 8 0 0 8
29 McCone 9701 Prairie View Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
30 Meagher 0569 1729 White Sulphur Springs 7-8 MG 8 4 0 12
30 Meagher 0569 0758 White Sulphur Springs El EL 8 6 2 16
30 Meagher 0570 0759 White Sulphur Springs HS HS 8 4 0 12
31 Mineral 0577 1730 Alberton 7-8 MG 4 5 2 11
31 Mineral 0577 0766 Alberton High School HS 4 6 1 11
31 Mineral 0577 0765 Alberton School EL 4 5 0 9
31 Mineral 0579 1731 Superior 7-8 MG 8 5 2 15
31 Mineral 0579 0767 Superior Elementary EL 8 5 0 13
31 Mineral 0579 0768 Superior High School HS 8 5 0 13
31 Mineral 0582 1732 St Regis 7-8 MG 8 7 0 15
31 Mineral 0582 0771 St Regis High School HS 8 7 0 15
31 Mineral 0582 0770 St Regis School EL 8 7 0 15
32 Missoula 0583 1486 Porter Middle School MG 0 4 7 11
32 Missoula 0584 1592 Big Sky High School HS 0 3 7 10
32 Missoula 0584 1432 Hellgate High School HS 0 2 6 8



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 11 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
32 Missoula 0584 1434 Seeley-Swan High School HS 8 3 0 11
32 Missoula 0586 1801 Hellgate Middle School MG 0 4 5 9
32 Missoula 0589 1733 Potomac 7-8 MG 4 4 0 8
32 Missoula 0589 0793 Potomac School EL 4 4 0 8
32 Missoula 0590 1734 Bonner 7-8 MG 0 5 4 9
32 Missoula 0590 0794 Bonner School EL 0 5 4 9
32 Missoula 0592 0796 DeSmet School EL 0 6 2 8
32 Missoula 0593 0797 Target Range School EL 0 4 4 8
32 Missoula 0594 0798 Sunset School EL 8 0 0 8
32 Missoula 0595 1738 Clinton 7-8 MG 4 4 0 8
32 Missoula 0595 0799 Clinton School EL 4 5 0 9
32 Missoula 0596 1739 Swan Valley 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
32 Missoula 0596 0800 Swan Valley School EL 8 2 0 10
32 Missoula 0597 1740 Seeley Lake 7-8 MG 8 4 0 12
32 Missoula 0597 0801 Seeley Lake Elementary EL 8 4 0 12
32 Missoula 0599 0802 Frenchtown Elementary School EL 4 3 4 11
32 Missoula 9698 Missoula Area Education Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
33 Musselshell 0605 0809 Central School EL 8 5 2 15
33 Musselshell 0605 1644 Roundup 7-8 MG 8 5 1 14
33 Musselshell 0606 0811 Roundup H S HS 8 4 0 12
33 Musselshell 0607 1742 Melstone 7-8 MG 8 3 1 12
33 Musselshell 0607 0812 Melstone School EL 8 5 1 14
33 Musselshell 0608 0813 Melstone High School HS 8 3 0 11
34 Park 0614 1743 Gardiner 7-8 MG 8 1 0 9
34 Park 0614 0825 Gardiner School EL 8 1 0 9
34 Park 1191 0824 Gardiner High School HS 8 1 0 9
34 Park 0617 0828 Cooke City School EL 8 0 0 8
34 Park 0635 0846 Springdale School EL 8 0 0 8
34 Park 1215 1821 Arrowhead 7-8 MG 8 8 0 16
34 Park 1215 1564 Arrowhead School EL 8 5 0 13
34 Park 1227 1797 Shields Valley 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
34 Park 1227 1665 Shields Valley Elementary EL 8 3 0 11
34 Park 1228 1666 Shields Valley High Schl HS 8 2 0 10
34 Park 9700 Park County Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
35 Petroleum 0642 1744 Winnett 7-8 MG 8 7 0 15



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 12 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
35 Petroleum 0642 0853 Winnett High School HS 8 7 0 15
35 Petroleum 0642 0852 Winnett School EL 8 8 0 16
36 Phillips 0648 1745 Dodson 7-8 MG 8 8 0 16
36 Phillips 0648 0863 Dodson High School HS 8 8 0 16
36 Phillips 0648 0862 Dodson School EL 8 8 0 16
36 Phillips 0657 0873 Saco High School HS 8 5 0 13
36 Phillips 1203 1746 Saco 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
36 Phillips 1203 0872 Saco School EL 8 6 0 14
36 Phillips 0659 1605 Loring Colony School EL 8 8 0 16
36 Phillips 0659 1505 Malta 6-7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
36 Phillips 0659 0875 Malta High School HS 8 4 0 12
36 Phillips 0659 1504 Malta K-5 EL 8 5 2 15
36 Phillips 0663 1747 Whitewater 7-8 MG 8 6 0 14
36 Phillips 0663 0879 Whitewater High School HS 8 5 0 13
36 Phillips 0663 0878 Whitewater School EL 8 6 0 14
37 Pondera 1226 1748 Heart Butte 7-8 MG 8 8 8 24
37 Pondera 1226 0886 Heart Butte Elementary EL 8 8 6 22
37 Pondera 1226 1656 Heart Butte High School HS 8 8 8 24
37 Pondera 0671 0888 Dupuyer School EL 8 0 0 8
37 Pondera 0679 1808 Kingsbury Colony Attn Ctr EL 8 0 0 8
37 Pondera 0679 1749 Valier 7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
37 Pondera 0679 0898 Valier School EL 8 5 0 13
37 Pondera 0680 0899 Valier High School HS 8 4 0 12
37 Pondera 9755 Big Sky SE Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
38 Powder River 0692 0913 Biddle School EL 8 0 0 8
38 Powder River 0705 1751 Broadus 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
38 Powder River 0705 0930 Broadus School EL 8 3 0 11
38 Powder River 0706 0931 Powder River Co Dist High HS 8 2 0 10
38 Powder River 0709 0934 South Stacey School EL 8 0 0 8
38 Powder River 9705 Tri County Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
39 Powell 0715 0942 Ovando School EL 8 0 0 8
39 Powell 0717 0944 Helmville School EL 8 0 0 8
39 Powell 0719 0947 Elliston School EL 8 5 0 13
39 Powell 0720 0948 Avon School EL 8 0 0 8
39 Powell 0721 0949 Gold Creek School EL 8 0 0 8



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 13 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
39 Powell 9703 Great Divide Educ Serv SECOOP NA NA NA 11
40 Prairie 0726 0958 Terry High School HS 8 4 0 12
40 Prairie 0726 1752 Terry Middle School MG 8 6 0 14
40 Prairie 0726 0954 Terry School EL 8 5 0 13
41 Ravalli 0731 1558 Corvallis 7-8 MG 4 4 0 8
41 Ravalli 0731 0964 Corvallis High School HS 4 5 4 13
41 Ravalli 0731 0963 Edna Thomas School EL 4 5 0 9
41 Ravalli 0731 1557 Quentin Brown Primary K-4 EL 4 5 0 9
41 Ravalli 0732 0965 Stevensville K-6 EL 4 4 2 10
41 Ravalli 0733 0966 Stevensville High School HS 4 2 4 10
41 Ravalli 0735 1533 Daly School EL 0 5 5 10
41 Ravalli 0735 1084 Hamilton High School HS 0 4 6 10
41 Ravalli 0735 1427 Hamilton Middle School MG 0 5 5 10
41 Ravalli 0735 0969 Washington School EL 0 4 5 9
41 Ravalli 0738 0972 Victor High School HS 8 5 0 13
41 Ravalli 0738 1753 Victor Middle School MG 8 6 1 15
41 Ravalli 0738 0971 Victor School EL 8 7 0 15
41 Ravalli 0740 1608 Darby 7-8 MG 8 6 0 14
41 Ravalli 0740 0974 Darby High School HS 8 5 0 13
41 Ravalli 0740 0973 Darby School EL 8 7 1 16
41 Ravalli 0741 1827 Lone Rock 7-8 MG 4 4 0 8
41 Ravalli 0741 0975 Lone Rock School EL 4 5 2 11
41 Ravalli 9690 Bitterroot Valley Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
42 Richland 0747 1754 Savage 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
42 Richland 0747 0982 Savage School EL 8 3 0 11
42 Richland 0748 0983 Savage High School HS 8 3 0 11
42 Richland 0750 1755 Fairview 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
42 Richland 0750 0986 Fairview School EL 8 3 1 12
42 Richland 0751 0987 Fairview High School HS 8 2 0 10
42 Richland 0768 1756 Lambert 7-8 MG 8 0 0 8
42 Richland 0768 1005 Lambert School EL 8 2 0 10
42 Richland 0769 1006 Lambert High School HS 8 2 0 10
43 Roosevelt 0774 1757 Frontier 7-8 MG 4 4 0 8
43 Roosevelt 0774 1411 Frontier School EL 4 5 0 9
43 Roosevelt 0775 1014 Poplar 5-6 School EL 8 8 8 24



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 14 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
43 Roosevelt 0775 1550 Poplar 7-8 MG 8 8 8 24
43 Roosevelt 0775 1015 Poplar School EL 8 8 8 24
43 Roosevelt 0776 1016 Poplar High School HS 8 8 8 24
43 Roosevelt 0777 1758 Culbertson 7-8 MG 8 1 1 10
43 Roosevelt 0777 1017 Culbertson School EL 8 2 0 10
43 Roosevelt 0778 1018 Culbertson High School HS 8 1 0 9
43 Roosevelt 0780 1022 Northside School EL 0 8 8 16
43 Roosevelt 0780 1020 Southside School EL 0 8 8 16
43 Roosevelt 0780 1532 Wolf Point 7-8 MG 0 8 8 16
43 Roosevelt 0781 1023 Wolf Point High School HS 0 8 8 16
43 Roosevelt 0782 1759 Barbara Gilligan 7-8 MG 8 8 8 24
43 Roosevelt 0782 1025 Barbara Gilligan School EL 8 8 6 22
43 Roosevelt 0783 1026 Brockton High School HS 8 8 8 24
43 Roosevelt 0785 1760 Bainville 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
43 Roosevelt 0785 1028 Bainville High School HS 8 1 0 9
43 Roosevelt 0785 1027 Bainville School EL 8 2 0 10
43 Roosevelt 0786 1761 Froid 7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
43 Roosevelt 0786 1029 Froid Elementary School EL 8 3 0 11
43 Roosevelt 0787 1030 Froid High School HS 8 4 0 12
43 Roosevelt 9801 Roose-Valley Sp Ed Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
44 Rosebud 0789 1032 Birney School EL 8 0 0 8
44 Rosebud 0790 1535 Forsyth 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
44 Rosebud 0790 1033 Forsyth Elementary School EL 8 4 0 12
44 Rosebud 0791 1034 Forsyth High School HS 8 2 6 16
44 Rosebud 0792 1626 Lame Deer 7-8 MG 8 8 8 24
44 Rosebud 0792 1035 Lame Deer School EL 8 8 8 24
44 Rosebud 1230 1816 Lame Deer High School HS 8 8 8 24
44 Rosebud 0795 1762 Rosebud 7-8 MG 8 5 4 17
44 Rosebud 0795 1038 Rosebud High School HS 8 6 0 14
44 Rosebud 0795 1470 Rosebud School EL 8 7 0 15
44 Rosebud 0796 1609 Frank Brattin Middle Schl MG 8 3 2 13
44 Rosebud 0796 1603 Pine Butte Elementary Sch EL 8 3 5 16
44 Rosebud 0797 1040 Colstrip High School HS 8 1 0 9
44 Rosebud 0800 1763 Ashland 7-8 MG 8 8 6 22
44 Rosebud 0800 1043 Ashland School EL 8 8 8 24



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 15 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
45 Sanders 0802 1627 Plains 7-8 MG 8 6 0 14
45 Sanders 0802 1045 Plains Elementary School EL 8 6 0 14
45 Sanders 0803 1046 Plains High School HS 8 5 0 13
45 Sanders 0804 1764 Thompson Falls 7-8 MG 8 6 0 14
45 Sanders 0804 1047 Thompson Falls Elem Schl EL 8 6 0 14
45 Sanders 0805 1048 Thompson Falls High Schl HS 8 7 0 15
45 Sanders 0807 1820 Trout Creek 7-8 MG 8 8 0 16
45 Sanders 0807 1050 Trout Creek School EL 8 8 0 16
45 Sanders 0809 1824 Dixon 7-8 MG 8 8 0 16
45 Sanders 0809 1052 Dixon Elementary EL 8 8 1 17
45 Sanders 0811 1765 Noxon 7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
45 Sanders 0811 1054 Noxon School EL 8 6 2 16
45 Sanders 0812 1055 Noxon High School HS 8 4 0 12
45 Sanders 0815 1766 Hot Springs 7-8 MG 8 5 1 14
45 Sanders 0815 1058 Hot Springs High School HS 8 5 1 14
45 Sanders 0815 1057 Hot Springs School EL 8 6 2 16
45 Sanders 9702 Sanders County Ed Services Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
46 Sheridan 0819 1767 Westby 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
46 Sheridan 0819 1062 Westby High School HS 8 2 0 10
46 Sheridan 0819 1061 Westby School EL 8 3 0 11
46 Sheridan 0822 1662 Medicine Lake 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
46 Sheridan 0822 1065 Medicine Lake High School HS 8 3 0 11
46 Sheridan 0822 1064 Medicine Lake School EL 8 4 0 12
46 Sheridan 0828 1768 Plentywood 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
46 Sheridan 0828 1071 Plentywood High School HS 8 1 0 9
46 Sheridan 0828 1070 Plentywood School EL 8 2 0 10
46 Sheridan 9693 Sheridan/Daniels Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
47 Silver Bow 0840 1641 East Middle School MG 0 3 8 11
47 Silver Bow 0840 1642 West Elementary School EL 0 5 4 9
47 Silver Bow 1212 1103 Butte High School HS 0 3 7 10
47 Silver Bow 0843 1106 Divide School EL 8 0 0 8
47 Silver Bow 0844 1107 Melrose School EL 8 0 2 10
48 Stillwater 0848 1111 Columbus Elem School EL 8 1 0 9
48 Stillwater 0848 1772 Columbus Middle School MG 8 1 0 9
48 Stillwater 0849 1112 Columbus High School HS 8 1 0 9



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 16 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
48 Stillwater 0850 1773 Reed Point 7-8 MG 8 0 0 8
48 Stillwater 0850 1113 Reed Point Elementary EL 8 1 0 9
48 Stillwater 0851 1114 Reed Point High School HS 8 2 0 10
48 Stillwater 0853 1116 Fishtail School EL 8 0 0 8
48 Stillwater 0857 1121 Nye School EL 8 0 0 8
48 Stillwater 0858 1774 Rapelje 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
48 Stillwater 0858 1122 Rapelje School EL 8 3 0 11
48 Stillwater 0859 1123 Rapelje High School HS 8 6 0 14
48 Stillwater 0861 1775 Absarokee 7-8 MG 8 1 0 9
48 Stillwater 0861 1125 Absarokee School EL 8 2 0 10
48 Stillwater 0862 1126 Absarokee High School HS 8 2 0 10
48 Stillwater 9704 Stillwater/Sweet Grass Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
49 Sweet Grass 0865 1776 Big Timber 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
49 Sweet Grass 0865 1129 Big Timber School EL 8 3 0 11
49 Sweet Grass 0868 1133 Melville School EL 8 0 0 8
49 Sweet Grass 0872 1137 Greycliff School EL 8 0 0 8
49 Sweet Grass 0875 1140 McLeod School EL 8 0 0 8
49 Sweet Grass 0882 1130 Sweet Grass Co High Schl HS 8 2 0 10
50 Teton 0883 1777 Choteau 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
50 Teton 0883 1147 Choteau School EL 8 4 0 12
50 Teton 0884 1148 Choteau High School HS 8 2 0 10
50 Teton 0889 1153 Bynum School EL 8 0 0 8
50 Teton 0890 1778 Fairfield 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
50 Teton 0890 1154 Fairfield Elementary School EL 8 4 0 12
50 Teton 0891 1155 Fairfield High School HS 8 1 0 9
50 Teton 0894 1780 Power 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
50 Teton 0894 1158 Power School EL 8 3 0 11
50 Teton 0895 1159 Power High School HS 8 2 0 10
50 Teton 0896 1160 Golden Ridge School EL 8 0 0 8
50 Teton 0898 1163 Pendroy School EL 8 8 0 16
50 Teton 0900 1814 Greenfield 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
50 Teton 0900 1165 Greenfield School EL 8 2 0 10
50 Teton 1235 1156 Dutton/Brady Elementary EL 8 7 0 15
50 Teton 1235 1157 Dutton/Brady High School HS 8 2 0 10
50 Teton 1235 1750 Dutton/Brady Middle School MG 8 5 0 13



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 17 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
50 Teton 1235 1838 Midway Colony EL 8 0 0 8
51 Toole 0903 1809 Hillside Colony School EL 8 0 4 12
51 Toole 0903 1815 Rimrock Colony School EL 8 0 0 8
51 Toole 0903 1781 Sunburst  7 - 8 MG 8 2 0 10
51 Toole 0903 1167 Sunburst Elementary EL 8 3 0 11
51 Toole 0903 1168 Sunburst High School HS 8 1 0 9
51 Toole 0910 1832 Cam Rose School EL 8 8 0 16
51 Toole 0915 1183 Galata School EL 8 0 0 8
52 Treasure 0923 1782 Hysham 7-8 MG 8 5 0 13
52 Treasure 0923 1194 Hysham High School HS 8 4 0 12
52 Treasure 0923 1193 Hysham School EL 8 6 0 14
53 Valley 0927 1783 Frazer 7-8 MG 8 8 8 24
53 Valley 0927 1205 Frazer Elementary EL 8 8 8 24
53 Valley 0928 1208 Frazer High School HS 8 8 8 24
53 Valley 0932 1784 Hinsdale 7-8 MG 8 7 0 15
53 Valley 0932 1212 Hinsdale School EL 8 4 0 12
53 Valley 0933 1213 Hinsdale High School HS 8 2 0 10
53 Valley 0935 1785 Opheim 7-8 MG 8 1 0 9
53 Valley 0935 1215 Opheim High School HS 8 3 0 11
53 Valley 0935 1214 Opheim School EL 8 0 0 8
53 Valley 0937 1786 Nashua 7-8 MG 8 0 0 8
53 Valley 0937 1219 Nashua High School HS 8 0 2 10
53 Valley 0937 1218 Nashua School EL 8 0 1 9
53 Valley 0941 1223 Lustre School EL 8 2 0 10
54 Wheatland 0945 1787 Hillcrest 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
54 Wheatland 0945 1228 Hillcrest School EL 8 6 4 18
54 Wheatland 0946 1230 Harlowton High School HS 8 4 0 12
54 Wheatland 0947 1231 Shawmut School EL 8 0 0 8
54 Wheatland 0948 1788 Judith Gap 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
54 Wheatland 0948 1232 Judith Gap School EL 8 5 0 13
54 Wheatland 0949 1233 Judith Gap High School HS 8 1 0 9
55 Wibaux 0964 1789 Wibaux 7-8 MG 8 2 0 10
55 Wibaux 0964 1238 Wibaux Elementary School EL 8 3 0 11
55 Wibaux 0964 1239 Wibaux High School HS 8 2 0 10
56 Yellowstone 0965 1272 Bench School EL 0 6 2 8



Schools and Special Education Cooperatives Impacted by Critical Quality Educator Shortages 2012-13

Office of Public Instruction December 2013 Page 18 of 18

CO County Name LE SC School Name

Grade 
Level For 

Report 
Count

Rural Isolation 
Score

Economic 
Disadvantage 

Score
Improvement 

Score Total Score
56 Yellowstone 0965 1255 Broadwater School EL 0 5 4 9
56 Yellowstone 0965 1262 McKinley School EL 0 6 6 12
56 Yellowstone 0965 1275 Newman School EL 0 7 4 11
56 Yellowstone 0965 1265 Orchard School EL 0 8 6 14
56 Yellowstone 0965 1480 Ponderosa School EL 0 7 5 12
56 Yellowstone 0965 1645 Riverside Middle School MG 0 5 8 13
56 Yellowstone 0965 1270 Washington School EL 0 7 2 9
56 Yellowstone 0966 1250 Billings Sr High School HS 0 2 7 9
56 Yellowstone 0967 1647 Lockwood Middle School MG 0 3 6 9
56 Yellowstone 0970 1280 Fred W Graff School EL 0 3 5 8
56 Yellowstone 0970 1620 Laurel Middle School MG 0 3 5 8
56 Yellowstone 0970 1282 West School EL 0 3 5 8
56 Yellowstone 0975 1792 Custer 7-8 MG 8 3 0 11
56 Yellowstone 0975 1289 Custer High School HS 8 4 0 12
56 Yellowstone 0975 1288 Custer School EL 8 4 0 12
56 Yellowstone 0976 1290 Morin School EL 4 6 2 12
56 Yellowstone 0978 1793 Broadview 7-8 MG 4 4 0 8
56 Yellowstone 0978 1292 Broadview School EL 4 5 0 9
56 Yellowstone 0983 1616 Huntley Project 7-8 MG 4 4 0 8
56 Yellowstone 0983 1296 Huntley Project Elem K-6 EL 4 4 1 9
56 Yellowstone 0983 1298 Huntley Project High Schl HS 4 3 2 9
56 Yellowstone 0985 1794 Shepherd 7-8 MG 4 4 0 8
56 Yellowstone 0985 1300 Shepherd Elementary EL 4 4 2 10
56 Yellowstone 9694 Eastern Yellowstone Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11
56 Yellowstone 9707 Yellowstone/W Carbon Coop SECOOP NA NA NA 11



 

 

Appendix A – Locale Codes 
 
What are locale codes? 
“Locale codes” are derived from a classification system originally developed by NCES in the 1980’s to describe 
a school’s location ranging from “large city” to “rural.”  The codes are based on the physical location 
represented by an address that is matched against a geographic database maintained by the Census 
Bureau.  This database is the Topographically Integrated and Geographically Encoded Referencing system, or 
TIGER.  In 2005 and 2006, NCES supported work by the Census Bureau to redesign the original locale codes 
in light of changes in the U.S. population and the definition of key geographic concepts. 

The locale codes are based on an address’s proximity to an urbanized area (a densely settled core with 
densely settled surrounding areas).  The urban-centric locale code system classifies territory into four major 
types: city, suburban, town, and rural.  Each type has three subcategories.  For city and suburb, these are 
gradations of size – large, midsize, and small.  Towns and rural areas are further distinguished by their 
distance from an urbanized area.  They can be characterized as fringe, distant, or remote. 

How are locale codes assigned to school districts? 
A school district’s locale code is not assigned on the basis of the central office address. It is derived from the 
locale codes of the schools in the district. If 50 percent or more of the public school students attend schools 
with the same locale code, that locale code is assigned to the district. For example, if 60 percent of students 
were enrolled in schools with a “rural - distant” locale code, and 40 percent were enrolled in schools with a 
“town - small” locale code, the district would be assigned a “rural – distant” locale code.  If no single locale code 
accounts for 50 percent of the students, then the major category (city, suburb, town, or rural) with the greatest 
percent of students determines the locale; the locale code assigned is the smallest or most remote subcategory 
for that category. 

Urban-Centric Locale Codes 

11 - City, Large:  
Territory inside an urbanized area and inside a principal city with population of 250,000 or more.  

12 - City, Midsize:  
Territory inside an urbanized area and inside a principal city with population less than 250,000 and greater than or 
equal to 100,000.  

13 - City, Small:  
Territory inside an urbanized area and inside a principal city with population less than 100,000.  

21 - Suburb, Large:  
Territory outside a principal city and inside an urbanized area with population of 250,000 or more.  

22 - Suburb, Midsize:  
Territory outside a principal city and inside an urbanized area with population less than 250,000 and greater than 
or equal to 100,000.  

23 - Suburb, Small:  
Territory outside a principal city and inside an urbanized area with population less than 100,000.  

31 - Town, Fringe:  
Territory inside an urban cluster that is less than or equal to 10 miles from an urbanized area.  

32 - Town, Distant:  
Territory inside an urban cluster that is more than 10 miles and less than or equal to 35 miles from an urbanized 
area.  

33 - Town, Remote:  
Territory inside an urban cluster that is more than 35 miles from an urbanized area.  

41 - Rural, Fringe:  
Census-defined rural territory that is less than or equal to 5 miles from an urbanized area, as well as rural territory 
that is less than or equal to 2.5 miles from an urban cluster.  

42 - Rural, Distant:  
Census-defined rural territory that is more than 5 miles but less than or equal to 25 miles from an urbanized area, 
as well as rural territory that is more than 2.5 miles but less than or equal to 10 miles from an urban cluster.  

43 - Rural, Remote:  
Census-defined rural territory that is more than 25 miles from an urbanized area and is also more than 10 miles 
from an urban cluster. 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B – District Personnel Recruitment Report 



Personnel Recruitment Report
2012-2013 School Year

Total Fte
of

Openings

Easy
to
Fill

Possible
to
Fill

Difficult
to
Fill

Applicants
But Unable 

to Fill

Unable to 
Fill No 

ApplicantsEducation Field

Teachers
Art 21%15.78 54% 25% 0% 0%
CTE 7%65.52 26% 57% 2% 8%
Elementary Curriculum 61%384.67 32% 7% 0% 0%
English 26%81.30 48% 21% 0% 5%
English as a Second Language 100%1.00 0% 0% 0% 0%
Health/PE 48%35.69 38% 14% 0% 0%
Mathematics 17%58.31 37% 46% 0% 0%
Music 5%43.34 39% 56% 0% 1%
Science 39%33.64 15% 43% 3% 0%
Social Studies 52%30.74 21% 24% 0% 3%
Special Education 7%82.34 32% 53% 1% 7%
Technology Education 0%5.25 24% 76% 0% 0%
Traffic Education 0%1.50 0% 33% 0% 67%
World Languages 14%21.22 40% 40% 3% 2%

Support Staff/Specialists/Administrators
Administrative - Other 38%10.50 29% 33% 0% 0%
Administrative - Principal 39%27.45 49% 10% 2% 0%
Administrative - Sp Ed Director 67%3.00 33% 0% 0% 0%
Administrative - Superintendent 10%7.75 65% 26% 0% 0%
Counseling 17%39.21 60% 22% 1% 0%
Library 42%19.69 25% 23% 7% 2%
No License Required 38%174.54 46% 16% 0% 0%
Nurse 0%5.00 60% 40% 0% 0%
Occupational Therapist 0%5.28 31% 67% 2% 0%
Physical Therapist 0%0.40 0% 100% 0% 0%
Social Worker 0%4.00 100% 0% 0% 0%
Speech-Language Pathologist 0%11.19 4% 58% 18% 19%
Support Staff 0%1.00 0% 100% 0% 0%

MADivision Area: CriticalLoanForgivenessWorkAreaFy2014.rptVacancyAreaStatewideSummary 11/11/2013 11:44:49 AM



ITEM 17 
 

RECOMMENDATION OF DIGITAL 
ACADEMY APPOINTEE 

 
Dennis Parman 

 
 
 
 
 

  



 

December

Montana B
Sharon Ca
 
Dear Boar
 
This fall t
and MTD
on the Go
“a Monta
education
Public Ed
District #
correspon

As a resul
recommen
January 6
considerat

 

Sincerely,

Dennis P
Governin
Montana
 

 

r 9, 2013 

Board of Pub
arroll, Chairp

rd Members: 

the MTDA Go
DA teacher Ba
overning Boar
ana-licensed 
n”.  Therefor
ducation of A
#5 and also M
ndence. 

lt of the MTD
ndation of An
-7 meeting to
tion of this re

, 

 

Parman, Chai
ng Board 
a Digital Aca

blic Education
person 

overning Boa
arbara Veis, th
rd and as is st
and endorse

re the MTDA
Anthony Lap
MTDA, to fi

DA Governing
nthony, to fill 
o present the r
ecommendatio

irman 

ademy 

n 

ard received a
he teacher rep
tated in Monta
ed classroom
A Governing
pke, mathem
ill this Board

g Board action
the vacant M

recommendat
on. 

and accepted t
presentative o
ana Code 20-

m teacher app
g Board is re

matics teache
d position. I h

n please cons
MTDA Board 
tion on behalf

the resignatio
on the Board H
-7-1201 this B
pointed by th
ecommendin
er with the K
have included

sider this lette
position.  I w

f of the MTDA

on of Billings 
Her departure
Board position
he board of p
ng the approv
Kalispell Dis
d Anthony’s r

er as the offic
will be in atten

A Board.  Th

Public Schoo
e leaves a vac
n is to be held
public 
val by Board

strict School 
resume with t

ial 
ndance at the 
hank you for y

ols 
cancy 
d by, 

d of 

this 

your 



Anthony J. Lapke 
▪  247 Glenwood Drive  ▪  Kalispell  ▪  Montana  ▪  59901  ▪  (406) 257-5963  ▪  lapkea@sd5.k12.mt.us  ▪   
 

 

“Educational systems 

need to train teachers 

and learners to be 

adaptable. Learning a 

framework for 

understanding 

enables teachers and 

students to apply 

newly acquired skills 

to their lives not just 

curriculum” 
Anthony J. Lapke 

 

 

 

 

 

 

References 

Callie Langohr 
Administrator 
Glacier High School 
(406) 758-8611  
 
Micah Hill,  
Administrator 
Glacier High School 
 (406) 758-8616  
 
Brad Holloway 
Department Head 
Glacier High School 
(406) 758-8662 
 
 

 
Professional Experiences and Qualifications 

 
 Montana Digital Academy 

 AP Calculus AB 2010 – Current 
 Lead Teacher 

 
 Kalispell School District 5  

 Glacier High School     2007 – Current 
 Mathematics Teacher  
 Technology Committee 
 Freshman Academy Team Leader 

 
 Additional Ongoing Professional Duties with School District 5 

 Kalispell Education Association Vice President 2010 – Current 
 Professional Development Instructor  2009 – Current 
 School District Mentor Committee  2007 – Current 
 Football Coach      2000 – Current 
 Basketball Coach     2001 – Current 
 Volleyball Coach     2002 – 2003 

 
 Kalispell Junior High School     2001 – 2007 

 Mathematics Teacher 
 Technology Committee 
 21st Century Literacy Study Group 
 Safe and Civil Schools Committee Leader 

 
 Browning School District  Blackfeet Reservation 

 Browning High School     1999 – 2001 
 Mathematics Teacher 
 Browning High School -  High Expectations Cadre Chairperson 
 Varsity Football - Assistant Coach   2000 

Education 
 Masters Degree: Education     2006 

 Technology in Education 
 Lesley University, Cambridge, Massachusetts  

 
 Bachelor of Arts Degree: Mathematics   1998 

 Secondary Education and Middle School Teaching 
 Carroll College, Helena, Montana 

 
 Leading the way, bringing modern instruction and technology to students and staff, 

bridging the gap between digital immigrants and digital natives 
 

 Designed and instructed ongoing training for school district staff and regional teachers 
in classroom technologies, and effective teaching strategies. 
 

 Compiled and digitized complete algebra curriculum to be integrated into online 
resources for student use of digitized materials 



 MACIE LIAISON (Item 18) 
Sharon Carroll 

 
ITEM 18 

 
MACIE UPDATE 

 
Sandra Boham 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BPE PRESENTATION 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
DATE: JANUARY  2014 

 

PRESENTATION: Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education (MACIE) 

 

PRESENTER: Dr. Sandra Boham 

 Chairperson for MACIE 

 Office of Public Instruction 

 

OVERVIEW: Summary of January, 2014 MACIE meeting.  Topics include:  Indian Education for 

All curriculum - Fort Peck PlaceNames; Indian Education for All grants; OPI Indian 

Student Achievement 2013 Report; Montana University System and American 

Indian and Minority Student Achievement report; election of MACIE chair; follow 

up on Montana Tribes update. 

 

REQUESTED DECISION(S): None 

 

OUTLYING ISSUE(S): None 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): None 







FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
March 13-14th, 2014 

 
CSPAC Appointments 

BASE Aid Payment 
Assessment Update 

Alternative to Standards Requests & 
Renewals 

MACIE Update 
Federal Update 

Accreditation Report 


	Financials.pdf
	ORG Bud by OBPP Prog,Fund,Subcl

	Item 1.pdf
	BYLAWS

	Item 17.pdf
	Anthony LapkeRésumé 2013 .pdf
	Professional Experiences and Qualifications
	Additional Ongoing Professional Duties with School District 5
	Education


	2013 BPE Calendar.pdf
	Nov 13
	Dec 13

	2014 BPE Calendar.pdf
	Jan 14

	Item 2.pdf
	11/21/2013 – 01/09/2014

	Item 8.pdf
	Info 3.a Executive Summary Pupil Transportation
	Info 3.b Pupil Tranpsportation Annual Report

	Item 9.pdf
	Info 7.a  Executive Summary Educator Preparation Providers
	Info 7.b  Accreditation Review Schedule
	Info 7.c Approved Programs
	Carroll College 2012
	MSU Bozeman 2013
	MSU Northern 2013
	MSU-Billings 2013
	Rocky Mtn College 2012
	Salish Kootenai 2010
	UM-Western
	The University of Montana-WESTERN Approved Programs

	University of Great Falls 2013
	University of Montana 2012


	Item 11.pdf
	Info 8.a Executive Summary Accreditation Upate on Annual Data Collection
	Info 8.b Accreditation Update Memo

	Item 13.pdf
	Info 2.a Executive Summary Bus Driver Qualifications
	Info 2.b BPE memo
	Info 2.c Audit -- Bus Driver Requirements
	Info 2.d Audit -- Moral Character
	Info 2.e Audit -- Driver History Information
	Info 2.f Audit -- Driving Records
	Info 2.g Audit -- Defining Moral Character
	Info 2.h Audit -- Periodic Review
	Info 2.i MCA Section 20-10-103
	Info 2.j January BPE Information
	Info 2.k Timeline-Sample
	Info 2.l Bus Driver Letter

	Item 14.pdf
	Action 3.a  Executive Summary Proposed Review Timeline of PEPPS
	Action 3.b  Proposed Timeline PEPPS

	Item 16.pdf
	Action 1.a Executive Summary Critical QE Shortages
	Action 1.b Critical Teacher Shortage Areas
	Background
	Critical Quality Educator Shortages
	Methodology for Identifying Critical Quality Educator Shortages
	What are locale codes? “Locale codes” are derived from a classification system originally developed by NCES in the 1980’s to describe a school’s location ranging from “large city” to “rural.”  The codes are based on the physical location represented b...
	Appendix B – District Personnel Recruitment Report
	Impacted Schools List for FY 2013-2014.pdf
	FY14Qualifed






